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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financal Statements fer the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The xecutive Leadership Group ¢ 'ELG ') presents the avdited Financial Siatements to the members of Chiflord Chance LLP. 2
limaed liabihity partnership registered i England and Wales with regstered number GC323571 A list of members' names 15
available for inspection at 10 L'pper Bank Street. London, E14 $JJ, Unied Kimgdom. which 1s alse Clifford Chance 11 P's
principal place of business and registered office

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

These audited financial statements of Clifford Chance | LP [“the firm” © ‘11 P} and s subsidiaries for the year ended 30 April
2023 have been prepared m accordance with LK -adopted International Accounuing Standards and with the requirements of the
Companses Act 2006 as applieable to Linited Liabihty Partnerships reporting under those standards

Principal activities
The principal activity (s the provision of legal services All results derive from continuing activities.
Group structure

Clifford Chance 15 the collective name lor an internanonal Iegal practice compnsing Chitord Chance LI P and its subsidian
cntiics The consolidated financtal statements incocporate the financial statemems of Chiford Chance 11 P and s subsidiany
entities  The consohdated resulis for the years ended 30 April 2323 and 2022 represent a consolidation of all entities comirolled
cither directly or ndireetly by Chifford Chance | LF These entities may be hranches parinerships wr separate corporate entibies
{"the Group' ) Clifford Chance 11 ¥ practices through overseas branches i Abu Dhabi. Amsterdam. Beying. Brussels, Duba
and Shanghai

Mansgement

[he 11 G chaired by the fims Manapimg Partier sels tie Growgy's strategy and oversees s implementation. The effectiseness
plthe LG s reviewed by the Partnersiup Countedd. led by the Group's Senior Partnes.

Ihe [inw's coustitution 15 govemed by our Paringislip Agreement. This requires that certan issues are subject o a vate of
panners including the clection of the Managig Partner, the Senior Partner and the Partnership Council. Paniners also vote on
the admission of new partners. mergers or acquisitions and other major mvestments and changes o the Partnership Agreement
itself Lach pariner has a simgle sote. although on certain matters (such as the amangements for remungration of equily partners)
only equaty partacrs are entitfed to vole

“he Fl G meets regularly and 1s responsible for our strategy . the development of our compctitive position. our relationship wilh
chents, rmd and long-term business planning, the perfonnance of the various parts of the Group, and its financial management.

The Partnership Counetl 15 an elected body chared by the Senior Pasner and also currently comprising af six elected
council members as well as one member appointed from outside the Group. The Pannership Council meets repularly in person
ta review the effectiveness of the Group's leadership and management The Partnership Council also ensures that appeintments
ti lcadership roles are handled effectvely and with duc regard to the interests of the partnership.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fnancial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Business review

“he results for the vear ended 30 Aprit 2023 reflect another vear of growth for the firm For the first ime ncome excecded £2bn.
increasing 3% from £1.969m 10 £2.062m reflecting the continued trust and confidence of our clients and the gualiy and
commitment ol our siaff and partners.

The war in Ukraine. inflativnary pressure and higher intesest rates created a more uncertamn economic ensironment and more
challenging market conditions for the legal indusinn  Honever despute the resulting decline 1 transactional activily the firm
continued to deliver income growth, This reflects ihe well hedged nature of the firm's business model Revenue from our
Liigation & Dispute Resolution practice offset the impact of reduced demand for our transactional practice areas [ncome grew
strongly in the 1 K offselting the more challenging market ensironment impacimg Asia Pacific and the Amenicas regions

Profit before tax and members’ remuneration and profit share was £793m. broadly n bne wath the prior year

Reflecting increasing demand from our clients. we have continued to invest in the Partnership of the firm Partner headcount
Increased to 593 at 30 April 2023 (2022 563).

Cash at the vear-end was £232m (2022- £378m) The fim: mamtamed sirong <ash reserves throughout the year and did not
dranwdown on its Revelving Credit Facility (' RCF ).

Net asseis attributable (0 members excluding members ntercsts classified as habibtes increased to £559m as at 346 Apnl 2023
(2022; £541m).

Going concern
Having considered current and expected activity levels. wogether with cashflow forecasts fur the following twelve months from
Uhe daie ol approval of the financial statenickts snd the sadability of the finns RO the 11 ¢ has concluded that the Croup has

adequale resources 1o contnue wy operations for the foresceable future Accordmgly. the Group continues o adopl the going
concern basis ol aceounting in preparing the financial statements

Financing
I'he Group 1s financed through a combimation of members’ own caputal and undistnbuted profits Addaionalls. a RCF of £130m

1s also avmlable The amount of capital per profit shaning vt »s determuned by the Partnership Agreement wih reference to the
future requirements of the Group
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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financial S1atemenis for the year ended 36 Aprid 2023

REFORT TO THE MEMBERS
Members' capital and drawings

The term "partner” i this Financial Swatements is used to refer 10 a member of Chifford Chance LLP, or an employee or
consultant with cquivalent standing and qualifications, or an individual with equivalent standing n one of the LLP's subsidiany
cnutics Pantner can either be equity partner or non-equity partner as per the partnership agreement The term "Member” i this
document 15 used 1o refer only 10 2 member of the LL P

The partners who are not members of the L1 P receive remuneration on an equivalent basis 1o members. | heir remuneration 1s
presented m the Consohidated Income Statement under ‘Staff and related costs’. Remuneration which 1s not profit-refated and
not discretionary that 1s pawd 0 members, is treated as a charge against profit and 1s presented in the Consolidated Income
Statement under ‘Menibers' remunerativn charged as an expense”.

Parincrs arc paid a monthly drawing nn account. w addition 1o the diswribution of profit share Members' capiial, which s
measured at cost 15 repayable within six months of retirement. and accordingly, is required 1o be classified as a liability Each
member contributes capiial to the Group in accordanee with the Parnership Agreement and w proportion 10 their profit-shanng
units The amount of capital per profit shanng unit is dutermined by the Pannership Agreemem with reference to the future
requirements of the Group

Profit sharing

The Pantnership Agreement of Chiford Chance 1.1P sets owl the basis for determining the profits avaitable for sharing between
equity partners Such profits differ from the profits shown in these financial statements because different accounting policies are
apphicd. and because the members of Clhifford Chance LI P esclude cerain cquity pariners and include cenam partners whe are
not equily partners

Qualifying third party indemnity

The Group has pul in place, throughout the sear and at the ume of approving these finaneral stalements qualifiing third party
indemity provisions for all the members of the Group
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Apnl 2773

REPORT TO TUE MEMBERS

Statement of members® responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The members are responsible for prepanng the Financial Siatements 1 accordance with applicable law and regulation
Company law. as applied to [inuted habdity pannerships by the Limuted Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit)
(Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 (the "Regulalions™). requires the members o prepare financial
statements for each financial year L'nder (hat law the members have prepared the group and the LLP financial statements in
accordance with Uk -adopted international accounting standards.

Under company law. as apphed to himited hability partnerships. members must not approve the financial statements unless

they are satisfied that they give a true and fawr view of the state of affars of the group and LLP and of the profit or loss of the
group for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the members are required to

select sunable accounting palicies and then apply them consistently

state whether applicable L'K-adopted intemational accounning standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disciosed and explained in the financial statements.

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. and

prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it 15 inappropriate 1o presume that the group and | LP
will conhinue in business

-

The members are responsible for safeguarding the asscts of the group and [LLP and hence for taking reasenable steps for the
prevenuon and detection of fraud and other iregulanitics

The members are also responsible for keepmg adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s
and LLLLP's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at amy time the financial postuon of the group and LLP and
enable them to ensure that the financial sialements comply with the Companies Act 2006
111 30 £ar as the membsers are anare
+ There is no relevant audit information of which the L1 P's audutors are unavsare and
* The members have tahen all steps that they ought to have taken w0 mahe themascaes aware of amy relevant audit
information and to estabhish that the auduors are awarc ol that informatioar:

Independent Auditors

The independent auduors of Chifford Chance |LP are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. who will be proposed for
reappointment. Pricew aterhouseCoopers 1 1P have expressed their willinaness to contnue i office as independent auditors

Designated members
The designated members duning the scar ended 30 April 2023 and subsequent 1o 1he year erid are
Charles Adams

David Harkness
Robin Abraliam

Rage



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Finaacal Statements for the year ended 30 Apral 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) under The Companies (Directors' Reporl) and Limited Liability

Partnerships (Encrgy and Carbon Report) Regulations, 2008

In accordance with the requirements of Streambined Encrgy and { arbon Reporiing {SECR) under The Comparjes {Direciors’
Report) and Limited Liability Pannerships tknevgy and Carbon Repurt) Regulauons, 2018, below are the dewads for UK

locations. A list of members is available on the Companies House websile

2023 2022

1 Lacrgy Consumption used to calculate emissions kWh 13377412 14,894,533

2 Emissions from combustion of gas 1C02¢ (Scope 1) 412 380

3 Lrmissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes 1 O2e {Scope 1) Not applicable Mot applicable

4 Emussions from business travel in wental cars or employee - owned vehicles where 2 -
Group is responsible [or purchasing the fuel 1C02e (Scope 3}

$ Lmissions from purchased efecinicity tCO2e (Scope 2 locauon -based) 2134 2,723

& Total gross tLCO2e based on above 2,568 3103

? UK's FTE in Nos. 1.980 1.904

B Intensity ratio: 1CO2e gross figure per emplovee {(6) * (7)) 130 163

Defrasused  Defra s used

9 Methodology for all UK tor all UK

crissons cmissions

caleolanens calculatons

10 Cmissions from other activities which the Group own or contral includng operation of Not applicable
facilities tCO2¢ (Scope 1)

11 Emussions from purchased clectneny tCO2¢ (Scope 2, market - based factor) -

12 Ermissions from heat. steam and cooling purchased for ovn use iCO2¢ 1 Scope 2) Not applicable

13 Emissions from extraction and production of purchased matersals and fuels which the  Notappheable
Group decs not own oF control (Scope 33N11CO2¢

14 Enssions jrom use of sold products and services which the Grroup dues not own or Nut applicable
control (Scope 3) 1CO2¢

15 Emisstons from clectniciny related to extrachon praduction. and transportation of fuels  Not apphicable
consumed 1 the generation of cleetricity which the Group does not own or control
(Scope 3) 1CO2e

16 Fmissions from purchase of clectricity that is sold {0 an end user which the Group does  Not applicable
not own or centrol (Scope 31 1C02%

17 Emissions (rom generation of electricity that 1s consumed 1 a transmission and Not applicable
distribution sy stem which the Group dees not own or control (Scope 3}/ 10°02¢
12 £ russions from transportation of purchased fuels which the Group does not ovwn or Not applicable

conitrol (Scope 33/ 1CQ2e
19 Fonssions from transportation of waste out of financial / operational controel (Scope 3) ¢ Not applicable
10O

20 Loussions from transportation of seid products which the Group does not ovn or Not applicable
control (Scope 3) 1 1CO2¢

2} Lnmssions from employ ee busmess travel which the Group does not own or control and 1.420
where not responsible for purchasing the fuel (Scope 3) ' ICO2e

22 Lnussions from employees commuting 1 and from work which the Group docs not Not apphicable

own or conted (Scope 3} 1C02e
2) Enussions from leased assets, franchises and outsourced acuvities (Scope 3) ' 1002¢ Not applicable
24 Envissions from disposal of waste generated in operauons which the Group docs not 635
own or controd (Scope 3) 11CO2e
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Stalements for the vear ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) under The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations, 2018 (continued)

2023 200

25 Emussions from disposal of waste generated in production of purchased materials and Not applicable  Not applicable

fucls which the Group does not own or control (Scope 3}/ tC0O2e

26 Emissions from disposal of sold products at the end of their life which the Group does  Not applicable  Not applicable

not own or control {(Scape 3) / tCO2e

27 Total gross Scope 3 emussions /1C02¢ 2.057 705
28 Total gross Scope |. Scope 2 (locatton) & Scope 3 emissions /1C0O2e 4625 3808
29 Total gross Scope |, Scope 2 (market) & Scope 3 emissions / tCO2¢ 2469 -
30 Carbon offsets - 1CQ2e Not applicable Not applicable
31 Domestic Carbon Linits Not applicable  Not applicable
32 Total annual net emussions / tCO2¢ (inciuding iocation based scope 2emissions) 4,625 3.R08
33 Total annual net emissions / 1CO2e {including Market based scope 2emissions) 2.46% -
334 UK's FTE 1 Nos 1.98C 1904
35 Addiional intensity ratia: tCO2e net figure per employ e (including location 234 200

based scope 2emissions){{32}/ (34))

36 Addiional intensity tane: 1CO2e net figure per employee (including Market 1.25 -

based scope 2emissions) i3/ (34))

37 Energy Efficiency Action:

o

o

Qur emtissions as set out in the table above are higher than the previous vear which reflects an increase i travel and a
retum to office based working. Compared with the year ended 30 April 2020. total annual net emisstons have fallen from
8,123 1C02€e 10 4.625 1CO2e. We continued to implement energy saving initiatives. as set oul below

. We have started 10 refurbish the chillers by replacing the existing compressors with enhanced. highly efficient refrigerant-

cooled. vanable speed drives (VSD) The chiller insiallations are a very significant load facior for electricity usage and
efierg) consumplion at London othice. 1 he sirategy also considers the challed water disiibution systems i the building.
in combination to upgrades of the cooling towers equipment. o obtain further energy reductions | stimated cnergy
savings until 2028 is 407 961 kWh:

W have installed new Inventers on Toiet Extract Fans  The estimated cnergy savings are 9.037 KWh per year,

W e installed new inverters on all three fans and the spray pump of coolmg rower 6 10 be more energy efficient Dunng a
2 weck comparison of cooling tower 19 with no new inverters fitted. the energy savings were 2.34ImWh.

W¢ have also been monitering on floor encrey consutzption patierns and demand and have ¢hanged »anables on the
Building Management Sy stem {BMS1 to operate building heating and a:c to reflect occupancy Jevels, and

The Emergency staircase lighting has been replaced wiih | Ds and sensors 5015 no longer on 24:7

Fape G



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2923

REFPORT TO THE MEMBERS

In compliance with the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act
2006) Regulations 2008, as amended by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Climate-related Financial Disclosure}
Regulations 2022.

Introduction

As desenbed i more detatl in the Strategy section, the Group does not consider chimate change to be a matenal financial
nsk 1o the business As a law {iem our enmssions are relatively small, and our mfrastructure relatively secure The Group's
business 1s well hedged and whilst climate change and the transition to a low carbon economy will affect our clients. we
do not envisage this reducing demand for our adsice and services. provided the firm maintams and builds its relevant
cxperuse Rather, the Group considers chmate change related advice and serviees as an area for potential growth.

The Group's commuiment to reducing errussions and to transparency on progress is oriented to ocur values, and what our
stakeholders can expect of us. desprie our operatonal enussions not having any matersal impact on globa! GHG
crissions The Group tracks 1ts chimale change-related commutments through specific targets and objectives detated m
this disclosure We also have policies and controls in place in respect of our business operation and supply cham that
speatfically address chimate change and support our focus to decarbonise our business.

I'he Group has a plan to reduce absoluie Scope | and 2 GHG emissions 80%, by 2030 from a base year of the year ended
30 Aprid 2620 1 FY20"). and 1o reduce absolte Scope 3 GHG emissions by 47% withun the samwe umeframe In March
2022 the Group s ncar-term scicnce-based targets tor 2030 sere independently assessed and validated us o key clement to
aur lenger-term amm of being net zero

| he Group tarpets net zero ambiirons whale at the same time seekimg to bielp our chents with theirs

The client work the Group underiakes m relation to ciimate change s mtegraled nto the Group's regions and practice
arcas and 15 often an clement of a wider scope of work Therefure, 1115 noi practical to quanuly separaely the value of
work undertahen by the Group  relation o ¢chimate change

This disclosure descnibes the Group's co-ordinated approach to its owsn environmental footprint includimg decarbonising
our operations and supply cham. and advising clients on ¢ltmale change and (he energy ransition hey management
groups with respensibiliny for s imclude

the Kesponsible Business Board ("R Board™ that proposes and has oversight of the Group's responsiblc business
strategy . as approved by the Lxecunive | eadership Gronp ("LLG™)

the Cilabal ESG Hoard that steers and co-ordinates (he activities ef the teams and lawyers advising chents on LSG maiters
mcludmg climate change

Commpnaltty of people on these Boards - including the same mdinadual as Charr helps 10 comnnect the approach of the
Group to the risks and opportunitics that chimate change presents

The Group uses a robust Enterpnise Risk Management Franieswork (“the Framewcerk), which 1s designed to address the
hikebihond and smpact of nsks matecalismg The Framework tracks climate change-related risks

During the year ended 30 Apnul 2024 ("I Y24"). the Group plans 10 conduct 3 deeper dive m relation 1o the financial
impact of climate-related 1ssues on its business and assess the Group's financial exposure 1o climate change (hoth nisks
and vpportunities) These oisks arc already on Uhe rsh radar of the Group (sec below ) y et sse recogmisc the salue of taking
the oppartutily 1o deepen the Group's understandmg of its potennal financial exposure to climate change (both risks and
vpportumiies)

The Group s a lounding member of the Net Zero Lawyers Alhance comnmtied (o acceleraling the transiion to Net Zero
b 2050

Page 7



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 31; Apnl 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

1. Governance

In this section we define the governance structures for the assessmienl. management and escalation of climate related matters and
describe the key executive responsibilities in relation 10 climate management and how key decisions and actions are taken

The develepment, implementation and compliance monitoring of our policies are managed through the General Counsel and
Compliance office. fed by the General Counsel and Chief Risk & Compliance Cfficer, who provide regular updates to the
Audit & Risk Conunittee and both sit on the Responsible Busimess Board representing 1he Doing Business pillar of the Group's
responsible business strategy , alongside the Environment pilar lead of the Responsible Business Board who chans the Group's
et Zero Delivery Group

These roles and relationships are explained i more detail below, but at a high level this shows the interconnectedness betsween
the different arms of the Group which address climate change

The Group has policies and controls in place in respect of our business operation and supply chain that specifically address
climate change and suppont our focus to decarbonise our business These include but are net limited to our Environment &
Energy Policy. our Climate Change Policy. our Global Procurement Policy . inclusive of our Supplier Relationship Management
Framework and our Supplier Code of Conduct and Standards and our Global Travel Policy.

Table §: Bodies of the Group involved in / having responsibility for climate change-related risks and opportunities

GROLP OVERSIGHT DESCRIPTION GOVERNANCE /
REPORTING
ELG The Group's opportumtics Has ulumate responssbiluty for the |Oversight from the
and risks stralegy of the Group mcluding the |Partnership Council
Grroup's responsible business
strategy
Partnership Council LG Res iews the perfermance of the

EL.G and any other 1ssues of
concem to the partnership
Audit & Risk Conumtlee F'he Group's tinancial Reviews both the repons of A sub-cormmitter of the
reporting and risks lmemal Audu and the Group's Partnership Council
accounts and momtors the Group’s
risk management processes

General Counsel’s Ollice and| The Group's risks Develops. implements and Part ol the EL.G
Risk & Compliance monitors compliance with Group
Policy and manages the Group's
Enterprise wide Risk Management

Frameworh
Global ESG Board ESG-related opportunitics for |Steering and convening the Group's
chient work ESG-related expenence and

capabiliies to provide ESG related
support 10 our ¢henls

RB Board The Group's Responsible Proposes and has oversight over the|Reporis to the ELG
Business sirategy responsible business strategy of the
Group, as approved by the ELG

Net Zervo Delevery Group The Group's Net Zero Recommends and manages the Reports to the Group's RB
Implementation Plan Group's Road 1o Net Zero Board
Implementation plan

Page §



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
2. Governance (cantd.)
Global ESU Board

In 2019 the Group created a cross-disciphinary Global ESG Board, drawn from partners and senior colleagues across our Group
who are experts n and working on ESG-related topics The role of the Global £5G Board 15 steening and convening our
expericnee and capabilities 1 relation to our ESG chient work, which includes aspects of chimate change such as strategic
advice and plamung, carbon trading and project mvestment, regulation and compliance, investment, financing and due
diligence. international obligations, and trade and hingatwn The Global ESG Board therefore has an important rolc m
wennfy ing and considering climate related opportunittes ansing from climate related workstreams

Chmate Change Policy

The Group has a Climate Change Policy that takes climate change issues into consideration in our matter acceptance policies In
accordance with the goals of the Paris Agreement on himiting climate change and the Glasgow Chmate Pact. the Group
acknowlcdges thar any such assessment needs Lo consider the Jevel of development and specific needs of vulnerable countries
In most cascs where a new matier potentially has a material and adverse impact on chimate change 15sues, we will assess
whether there are sufficient mitigating/compensating grounds to take on the matter in this way. the Climate Change Policy acls
to dentifi work which might be high nsh from a climate change perspective and draws these chimate-related nisks to the
attenuion of partners when considering whether to tahe on a new matter. As well as according with the Group's values. this
process assists i managing the potential nsks (o the Group's business in terms of reputation stalf retention and impact on
winming other business

Emvironment & Energy Poln)

The CGrowp has an Enviromment & Lacrgy Policy that takes into consideration the decarbonisation of our business operations
and provides visibiity of the actons we need 1o 1ake as an organisation to nininuse our environmental impact and fulfil the
science-based targets comnutments we have made

Responsible business sirategy

The Group's responstble business strategy  wiuch comprises four pitlars: Dowg Business. People Community & Pro Bono and

of most relevance in this context - the Environment, s overseen by the RB Board 1he RB Board. comprising partners and
semor directors who melude permanent and co-opted members of the ELG. meets at least quarterly o review progress and
discuss strategic mtiauves  [hos weeluded the dey clopnient of the Group's Net Zero sirategy and monitoring progress

The Net Zero Delivens Group. which reports directly mite the RB Board. 1s responsible for the delivery of our Net Zero
Programnc, inclusive of our near-term science-based targets and will repont on climate change nsk and opportunity The Net
Zero Delineny, Group takes a global approach and compnises pillar leads and representatives from across our Group The chair
ol Net Zeru Deliveny Group 13 the Deputy Co-(Chair of the Responsible Business Board and leads the Lny ronment pillar of the
Group's responsible business strategy The Co-Lead of the Global Markets. Chents and Products Comnuitee of the ELG and
the Group’s Executive Partner & General Counsel also sit on the RB Board and are the bnidge between the RB Board and the
FLG

The ficus arcas For the Net Zero Programme include business emisstons, travel emssions. supplier emissions and lawyer
engagement lo support deliveny of our environmental commitments. Amongst other things we beheve that our focus on
emissians reduction pre-empts regulation and global events which will increase or cven prevent use of fossil fuels

To add 1o and tmpros e rish nranagement practices related w climate change, during FY24 the key areas of focus of the Greup's
Net fere Delivery Group, working with Operations. Risk and Compliance and other reles ant stakeholders. will be

« Metrics assessing the financial impact of climate change: consider the appropnatencss ol tracking specific financial metrics.

+ TIntegrating climate risk into the Framework: Wiile we have had a dedicated nisk rezister on climate rishs as part of the
Framevwork for some ume. we entend tn further enhance and cxpand the register. with more stakcholder engagement and a
greater focus on ownership und acceuntainling

*  Analysing the resilience of the business model: as explamed above and helow  our guahtatin e assessment 1s that the Group's
business model s resilicnt to chmate change  We will complete a more detailed Group wide analysis in anticipation of FY24
annual report

Page 9




CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the yvear ended 30 Apnl 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
2. Governance (contd.)

We recognise that by implementing these reccommendations, the Group will strengthen its nisk management practices related 10
climate change This will enhance understanding. accountability, and deciston-making processes. while demonstrating a
proactive approach towards addressing climate-related risks

Ecol adis offers third-parity support and validation of the Group's i ansiteon efforis

The Group has partnered with EcoVadis to help monitor the sustainabulity performance of the Group and s suppliers against a
globally recogmsed methodology aligned to the UN Global Compact. Internatonal Labour Organisation, Global Reporting
Initiaus e and 1SO26000. The monitoring through EcoVadis, which requires the Group and Hs suppliers (o provide evidence to
support review and assessment. validaies the progress thal the Group is making year-on-year The output of the sustamability
assessment includes a "corrective action plan', which enabled the prioritisation of achons during the year ending 31 Apni 2723
10 supporn <continuous improvement effons,

The Group has used the outputs of the reviews to inform discussions with supplicrs. as welt as pros ide ransparency around
steps that mclude but are not limited to more detailed reporting on the Group s Responsible Business website Supply cham
engagement is crucial 1o the Group achieving its Environmental, Social and Governance commitments. acknowledging that
66%0 of our scope 3 emissions reside with our purchased goods and services categon

The partnership with EcoVadis allows the Group to work alongside supphers to help supplier to reduce their negatine
environmental and social impacis. whilst allowing us to fulfil our long-term ambition of becoming net zero

Some core inltiatives include;

* Setng near-lerm science-based targets for 2030 as a key elenwent 1o our lenger-term commitment o reach net-zere giobal
emissions by 2050 at the latest.

+  Creating lughly sustainable workplaces, with recent exaniples including our Perth, $y duey. Singapore and Dubas offices

+ Co-Founding the Net Zero Lawyvers Alliance. in a venture that brings together the legal industry 10 make collaboratin e efforts
towards, and share best practice on. the transition

= Driving sustainable change through our Cornerstone lmitatine. which aims to improsve wellbeing in the poorest communities m
Kigal. Rwanda

In 2022 EecoVadis recogmsed Chiford Chance with a Geld Medal status, placing Clifford Chance in the top 5%e ol all
businesses assessed by CcoVidis and the top 2% of those Gronps assessed within the legal and accounting services sector

3. Strategy
Climate change-related risks

As described 1n section 4 below. the Group's nsk wdentification process identified climate change as an emerging business nisk
n 2021 Emerging nisks are tracked and reviewed regularly by the central risk team and discussed with the ELG and the Audat
& Rusk Committee Until now. on review 1t has not been considered a matenal financial risk to the business. As such. i will
continue 1 be monuored and reviewed as described in this disclosure both as part of the emerging risks and scparately n s
own right as part of the regular review of the Climate rish register In any event. there are reputational risks that nught anse
from a farlure to achies¢ the Group’s own enussions reduction targets or non-comphance with our policies, which the Group is
focussed on avoiding through the mechanisms that this disclosure explans

Clonae clxmnge velated oppornontics
Advisory services related 1o climate change and the encrgy transition

As deseribed above. the Group has a Glokal I'SG Board and has also launched an I nergy Transition Initiauve that focuses on
legal advice for arcas includmyg renevable energy  carbon caplure and slorage. clean hvdrogen, encrgy storage. TV charrmz

transmission and snterconnection. carbon trading and s estment and new nuclear  The Group regularly advises cliems on
clinate change regulation, the Just Iransiion and Transition Plannmmg and sustatnable finance. These initiatives fonn part of
the Group's stralegy (o ensure the Group 1s well posiioned to serve chieats i relation to climate change. The Group does not.
lowever treat chimate change as a separale profit contre. and does nol separately monttor revenue from climate related work
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fnancial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REFORT TO THE MEMBERS

3.

[

Strategy (contd.}

Partnering

We believe thal s unportant thal Chfford Chance, as a leading law fimm, shows Icadership in relation to chmate change. but
that such leadership 15 also important for our credibility with clients m celation to climate-related work The two climate change-
related intiatives below are key examples ot this

Chifford Chance 1s a founder mermber of the Net Zero Lawyers Alliance {NZLA) and the Legal Sector Task Force within the
Sustainable Markets Imtrative (SMI)

The NZLA commits to suppon the goal of Net Zero greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by 2650 or sooner, 1 line with global
etfors to linmt warming to 1 3C (Nat Zero).

The SMI was launched by King Charles 11 0 hus former role as His Roval Highness The Prince of Wales at The Worid
Economic Forum in January 2020 to moilise business and finance Icaders to accelerale the transition 19 a net-zero world. The
SMI has formed industry -specific. CEC-level Task Forces to drive positive change to protect people and planet from the threals
of chimate change. including supporting nature’s brodiversiny  The Group agreed to be a founding member of the Sustainable
Markets Immative Legal Task Foree (L TF) The Group's Senter Pantner represents the Group as a member of the LTF,

Alse relevant to the Graup's repatation 1 the Group's commumity and pro bono werk, which include and target climate change-
focused mmmatives For mstance. the Chifford Chance Foundation has provided grant funding of £300.000 1o support Save the
Children's engagement wath the Umited Natwmes Green Chmate [ und and. specifically. the development of ts application for
funding of gr et LSS 20 miflion to build the resthence i particular of wonien and children in the face of chimate change across
tive coastal distficts ol Sierra | cone

Climaie change-related training and trends

We invest signilicant iime in rescarch mitemal tranming. client trauning. seminars and writien briclings focussed on the energy
transition and associated arcas such as carbon trading The process of runming, events and drafimg und publishing repornts and
bricfings on elimate change ssnes, trends and regulatony desdlupments suppuerts and enhancees the Group's knowhow and
awgreness of these topics, and so our abidity o win and execute chent mandates

Risk management

As part of the fimi s ERM process the cenidral team carmes out a formal honzon scanning exercise where intemal staheholders

subject matter expents and the Group's beadership are engaged to idenii hey nisks relevant to our business This includes use of
mnternal suncys, workshops and research conducted by the nsh team based on external publications and rehable sources

Climate change was wdentified as an emerging nisk as part of this process and a nish register dediented to Climate-related nsks
was developed m 2021 which 1dentilied phy sical and transition fisks in broad temms, together with controls and mitigations

As part of the Group's reporting structure. all emerging risks are reported 10 the Audit and Risk Commitice and the | xecutive
| eadership Group pertodically Climate change was discussed as an emerging risk with the Audit Risk Committee in Seprembier
2021 the conclusion of which was thai the risks identified were not financially maicrial to the Group’s business as a law finn

Some chmate related nisks are identified and assessed through our business continuity management processes Operational
resilience and business continuily s a standing item on the apgenda of the Group's Opcranons and Business Transformation
Commttee, co-chawed by miembers of the FLG

Climate change nsk will contitiue o be momtored as part o the Group’s ERM process

Wihilst the Group's ability 1o meet and progress towards ts chmate change commitments does nel currentls represenl a maicnal
finaneral nisk 1L represents a rish to our reputation and therefore our progress requires to be monitored  Our progress towards
the Group s near term serence-based targets for 2030 as a kev elanan 1o vur Junger wnm cemmitment w reach net-rero global
enussions by 2050 at the latest are detaded i the objectives and metrics below
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the \ ear ended 30 April 2023

REFORT TO THE MEMBERS
5. Metrics and largets
Climate change related risks

The Group does not currently have detailed financial-related meincs for chimate change rishs and as described above will
consider whether such metrics could be developed and what they would measure during £ Y24

Climate change-related opportinnties

We consider trends and themes that we anticipate seeing wn the medium term and ensure that our teams are developing skillsets
in the high-end arcas of climate change-related legal expertise thal our chents require and that we expect to continue (0 grow
We do not currently track what percentage of the Group's revenue stems from climate change-related services We are however
increasingly offering climate change-related legal services (see above) The Group will explore whether 1t can track and report
the revenue generated by this work in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 Apnl 2024

Tabte 2. A review of our GG emissions FY23 v FY20

Category Emissions (¢CO2e) Emissions ({CO2e) %o change (+/'-)
FY23 FY20 (validated by SBTuin FY22) FY20to FY23

| Direct Emissions 719 00 1,304 00 -43%
2 Indirect Emissions .
(Location-Based) 754139 8.602 00 12
2 Indirect Emissions (Market- 1154 07 1 869 00 18
Based)

1 + 2 {Location-Based) 8,280 39 9906 00 -16%
1 + 2 {(Markel-Based) 3.893.07 5173 00 -23%
3 Onher Indirect Emissions 934.558.04 126,52) 36 -25%
1 + 2 (Location-Based) + 3 103.238 43 136427 36 -24%
{ + 2 (Market-Based) + 3 98,831 11 131,694 36 -25%

Supph Chain (Scope 3}

Our sustamable procurement programme (o7 the reporting period has focused on measurmg the sustamabihity and carbon
perfarmance of our key supphers. wiich has seen a 6% reduction in our purchased goods and senvices calegon emissions
agamst an | Y20 baseline. For the year ending 30 April 2023 we have been able 10 use supplier specific cnussions factors 1
help reduce our reported cmissions. however. we have also noted a heavy rehance on spend data still where supplicr ennssions
have not been provided.

To support effective decarbon’sation of our supphy cham. we are seehng ty expand our engagenwent with our suppliers as part
of our programme 10 support supphiers to lake positise steps Iewards measunng thewr carbon reduction and setiing science-
based targets, including providing mctnies through LeoVadis The monitoring through EcoVadis provides. thraugh validation
the practical steps that our suppliers are tahmg to mmunmse their ensironmental inpact it also provides visthility of low
eny ronment scores and supports corrective aclion planning and censultation with suppliers to support direct and mdirect GHG
emissions reduction.
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

5. Metrics and targets (contd.)

Supph Uham (Scope 3) (contd )

The percentage make-up of our purchased goods and services category within scope 3 has increased in the year ending 30 April
2023 from 59 3% to 66% even though we've been able 10 reduce our overall supply chain emissions for the reporting period by
16% Thus has demonstraied a greater reliance on third parties by the Group. Whilst there are benefits of use of third parties.
we know that reliance on them can expose the Group 10 the risk of our suppliers” management and infrastructure. It increases
the complexity of risk management, a3 it is inherently difficult to understand the processes, procedures and inner workings of
our suppliers and can ntraduce the types of risk to which the Group may not have previously been exposed. This includes. but
1s nat limited to. concentration risk, location risk, legal and / or jurisdiction risk. roting that the supplier may be operating in
hugh-risk countries  Through our sustainable procurement and supplier management programmes. we're focused on enhancing
our supplier risk management approach and in FY 24 as part of the procurement of new tools, focused on country, industry and
country nisk assessment, we're hoping to review glohal or regional economic disruption arising [tom the impact on sectors with
supply chains that are heavily concentrated in areas of high physical risk.

As part of our commument we have set a goal that our 1op 50 purchased goods and services suppliers {by emissions) set 1 5
degree aligned science-based targets 10 reduce their own climate impact and will achieve a 50% reduction by 2030. We
acknowlcdge that this requires regular engagement with our suppliers through our sustainable procurement programme and
hav ¢ prionibised wargeied achon 1o support data caplure in EcoVadis. Moving away from data capture using spend data (o actual
enusstons data will also help to support more accurate data capture and minimise any reputational damage through us nat
achicving our targets

L ower travel as a result of the Pandemic. has led 10 a 79% reduction 1n Business Travel against the FY 20 bascline. This is not

sustanable in the longer term and we will plan to implement a "Responsible Travel” campaign 1o ensure compliance with
travel pohcies and commumicate the impact of our environmental targets

Table 3. Qur business travel and supplier management targets

Overall Target Business Travel Goals Supplier Management Goals Impact
Our annual commutment for |- 40% reduction n = Top S0 supphers withseta 1 3 |- Aligned to | SC (which s
Scope 3 from FY20 reduces  |mtemational fhights and long- [degree aligned SB1 and wilt key for a Net Zero pathwar }
by 47% by 2030 haul flights by 2030 achieve a 50% reducton by 2030
- Cheght emission factors to bef Next level down - nest 50 - Remarming emissions i
reduced by 8% by 2030 supphers with bugh submussions  |2030. 74.7711CO2¢

will be vated to Sustanable
- Reduce enmissons from tixas| Procurenent Propramnie with 2
by 25% by 2030 30% reduchion by 2030
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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financial Statements for the y ear ended 33 Aprd 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

&, Metrics and targets (contil.)

Chart 1. FY20 to FY2J - change in total emissions (market based)

11
-25%

L2

(1L1)

ot

Thousands tCOe

1y

Py

Scope 1 Scope 2 (market based)  ®Scope 3

Based o IEA diata frora the 154 (2022) Faniasions foctors ANl vighis reserved, ws modifiod iy Clifford Chance

LLF.

Table 4. Progress versus 30 April 2023 climate change-related targets set by the RB Board and approved by the ELG

Target

Key Performance Indicator

Performance

To reduce the Group's absolute GHG emissions
from our FY20 baseline to achies e our near-term
targets (80°0 reduction for scape | and 2 and
47% reduction for scope 3) by 2030 Scope | &
2 erissions reduced by 7 3% (year on sear
avcrage) - Scope 3 ennssions reduced by 4 2%
(yvar on year average)

Neas-term 2030 scicnee-based target
impiementation plan created and
commumicated across the Group
» Science based largets revicwed to
ensure all reley ant enuission sources
are being measured
+ Tatal enussions generated i tCO2e
-Scope | - 1C02e
- Scope2 ICO2e

Scope 3 ICO2e

Sce separate table aboyve

To support the work of ensironmental NGOs
through pro bono assistance and grants from the
Chfford Chance Foundation

Percentage number and amaunt of our
pro bono and commumty cutreach
mandates. and Clifford Chance
Foundation grants that cantribute 1o
the achies ement of the Sustainable
Development Goals relating to the
environment

Opened 19 enyronment related pro
bono mandates

We have long-term relationships
with 12 pro bono and commiunity
partners  [here are 17 prosects
within these relationsheps with an
eavironmental focus

Te participate in recogmsed extemal forums to
mfonn and support our near-term 2034 science-
based (arget commitment

Number ol extemal forums attended

7 x forums (Net Zero Lawyers
Alhance Sustanable Markets
ninative. CIPS Procurement
Futures. | egal | oresight Summint
Moving Bevond, EcoVadis Sustam.
Legal Sustainabiluy Allance)
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 2023

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

§. Metrics and targets (contd.)

Table 4. Pragress versus 30 April 2023 climate change-related targets set by the RB Board and approved by the ELG

(contd.)

Target

Key Performance Indicator

Performance

To raisc intermal and external awareness and
involvement in our environmental and energy
policies to support the delivery of our near-tecm
2030 science-based target commutmient

Percentage of employed engaged
and/or trained
+No of Campaigns

We have progressed training for our
sustainable procurement programme
and have a plan in place to suppon
raining  upskill for our Sourcing
team and Contract Managers /
Ohwners 5§ x cohorts (50
participanis) have been run for our
SRM Learming Programme, which
includes, but is not hmied to,
sustainability

2 {World Environment Day and
Earth Hour)

To leverage our Susiainable Procurcaient
Programme to undersiand our suppliers” indirect
and dircct GHG emissions and to use the autputs
from independent verification and analysis to
report and reduce our scope 3 ermissions and m
collaboraiton with our supply chain fulfil our
near-term 2030 science-based target commitment

« %o ey suppliers taking action on
energy consumprion & GHGs

+ %o Key supplicrs that have waste
management procedures in place

* %o key supplicrs repornting on energl
consumption & GHGs

« %o Koy supplicrs signed up o
Seienee Based Targets Initiativ e

« % K¢y supplicrs that have
acknowiedged our Supplier Code

+ Mo. of Supplicrs Engaged (Global}

» Total emissions generated” in tCO2¢:
- Scope | - 1CO2e

Scope 2 1CO2e

Scope 3 1CO2e

83% of our key suppliers are taking
action on encrgy consumption &
GHGs

83% of our key suppliers have waste
management procedures in place
67% of our key suppliers are
reporting on cncrgy consumption &
GlIGs.

43% of our key suppliers have
signed up to Science Based Targets
Initiatine

100 % ol our key supplicrs have
ackaow ledged our Supplier Code
66 of our key supplicrs have been
rated through EcoVadis so far, with
27 assessmerns in progress.

See separate table above

Report 10 the members, the sircamlined encrgy and carbon report and task force on chimate-related financial disclosures are signed
on behalf of the Executive Leadership Group by

GhMs. e

Char! Patrick Glyd
Managing Partner Chief Financial Officer
13 July 2023 1§ July 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clifford Chance LLP

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our gpinion Cliffard Chance LLP's group finaacial $lalemenls and LLP financial slalements {the financial slalements’}.

+  give & true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the LLP'$ affars as al 30 Apeil 2023 and gf the group's profit and the group's and
LLP's cash fows for the year lhen ended-

+ have bean propery prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internabonat accounling standards as applied in accordance wilh the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

+  have been prepared .n accordance wih the requirements of ihe Companies Act 2006 as appied to limited Lability parinerships by the
Limited Liability Parinerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Acl 2008) Regu alicns 2008,

We have audited the financial siatements, ncludec within the Financial Statements (lhe “Annual Report’), which comprise. consolidated and
hmited liability parinership balance sheets as at 30 Apnl 2023, consolidated income statemenl, consolidated stalement of comprehensive
income, consolidated and lim ted <abt>ly partnership statemaents of changes in equily and consolidated and limited liability partnership cash flow
statemenls far Ihe year then ended. and the notes to the fnancial slatements. which wnciude a descriplon of the significant accouniing policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audn in accordance with ntemational Standards on Audiing (UK} {15As (UK)") and applicable law Qur responsibililies under
ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsib ities for the aud't of the financial stalemenis section of our report We beheve lhat the

audit evidence we have obtained s sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis [or our oginion
Independence

We remained independeni of the group in accordance with the elh cal requirements that are relevanl ta guc auait of the financial statements n
the UK. which includes the FRCs Ethwca Slandard, and we have fulfilled our other elhical respensibilies in accordance with these

requiremenis

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identfied any maleriai uncenainties relaung to events or condilions that, indwidually or
collectively, inay cast significanl doubt on ihe group’s and the LLP’'s abilily lo contimue as a going concern for a period of al feasl twelve months
from when the financizl statements are authornised for issue.

In audiing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members” use of the going concem basis ¢f acccuniing in the preparatcn of the
financial statements 15 appropriale.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicled, his conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the LLP's ability
fo conlinue as a going concern.

Qur responsibililies and the responsibilities of the members wilh respect (o going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Clitfford Chance LLP (continued)

Reporting on other information

The aother information comprises all of the infarmaticn n the Annual Report other than the financ:al statemenls and our auditsrs’ repon thereon
The members are responsible for the othar informaton Qur opinion on the flinancial stalements does nol cover the olher informaton and,
accordingly, wa do not express an audit opinion ar any lorm of assurance thereon

in connaction with our audil of the financial slalements, our responsibility is 10 read the olher information and, in doing so. consider whether the
ather nformation k= materiglly incansistent with the financial statemenis or our knowledge oblained in the audid, or olharwis® appears to be
materially misstaled If we identity an apparent malarial inconsislency or matarial misstalement, we are required to perform procedures to
gonclude whether there s a malenal misslalement of the financial siatemenls or 8 matenal missiatlement of the other nformalion !f. based on
the work we have parformed we conclude that there is 2 matenal nigstatement of this olher informaltion we are required 10 report that fact We
nave nothing to repont based on (hese responsiblt es

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the members for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Staternent ¢of members' respansibilities n respech uf Lhe financial statements, the members are respansible for the
preparation of the finarcial statements in accordance with the applicable framewaork and far being satisfied that they gve a true and far view
The members are also responsible for such inlemal control as Ihey determine is pecessary 1o enable the preparat on of financial sfatements thal
are free from matenal misstalement, whelher due in fraud or error

In preparing the financial slatements, the s are resp bie fo- g the group’s and the LLP s abdity (o continue as a gong
concern, disclosing, as applicable mallers related to gowng concern and using iha going <oncem basis of accournling uniess the members either
intend to liquidate Ihe group or tha LLP or o cease aperal v s or have ni: reakstc allemative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are lo oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material missiatement,
whether due lo fraug or emror, and to 1ssue an auditors raport thal includes our opinion Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
1s not a guarantée that an audt conducted in accordance with 5As (UK) wil always delecl a malerial misstalement when ot exists.
Misstalements can a-se from fraud or error and are cons dered matenal o, indwidually or in the aggregate. Ihey could reasonably be expected to
influence Ihe econom c decisions of users taken on 1he basis of these financial siatements.

Imegulaniies, including fraud. are nstances of non-compliance wilh [aws and regulations We design procedures in hne with our responsibilities,
cullined above, to detect material misstatemenls in respect of iregulariies, ncluding fraud The extent fo which our procedures are capable of
defecling yregulanbes, including fraud. 1s detailed below

Based on our undarsianding of ine group and industry, we identified thal the principal risks of non-compliance with iaws and regulat ons relaled
to Soficitors Regulaton Autharity regulation. and we considerad the extant o which non-compliance might have a matedal effect on the financial

1at its We also ¢ dered those laws and regulalions that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act
2006 as applied to limited liabdity partnerships {(Accounts and Audil) (Applicalion of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 We evaluated
management's incentives and opportudnities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial slalements (including the fisk of overide of controls),
and determ ned lha! the principal nsks were related to posting ol inapproprale journal entries 10 manipulate atcounling récords, ovemding
relevani conlrols o prepare incormect financia information and management bias in accounling estimates Audil procedures performed by the
engagement team nciuded:

« Evawalon of the design of management's controls gesigned lo prevent and delact ime gularities,
+ Raview of all intemal audt repofts issued to the Audit and Risk Commillee which highiighted any issues with respacl to poteatal fraud,

+ D'scussion with managemenl, lhe Chal Risk and Comphance Officer and the Haad of Lagal, including consideration of known or
suspected instances of non-comphance with law and reguiations and fraud,
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Independent auditors’ report to the menibers
of Clifford Chance LLP (continued)

Auditors’ rasponsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

+ Challenge of assumplions and ,wdgements made by managemenl in respect of significanl accounling esimates; and
+ Testing unusual or unexpected journal entries, pan culary those impacling revenus.

There are inherent limdatons n the audit procedures described above We ara less likely to become aware of inslances of nen-comphance with
laws and regulatons thal are not clasely relaled (o events and transaclions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a
material misslatement dus 0 fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from emor as lraud may involve deliberate concealment
by, for example, forgery o¢ intentional misrepresentations or through cellusios.

A further description of our responsibibies for lhe audit of lhe financial statemenls is located on the FRCs website at
www ¢ org uk/audilorsresponsibilit es This descripkon forms part of our auditors’ report

Use of this repor

This report, includng the cpinons. has been prepared for and only for the members of \he pactnership as a body in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008 as apphed 10 hmited habilty partnarsh ps by the Limited Liabitily Partnerships {(Accounts and Audil) (Application of
Companies Acl 2008) Regulat ons 2038 and for no other purpose Ve do nol n giving these cpinions_ accept or assume responsibility for any
alher purpose or t¢ any olher person Lo whom this report 1S shown or inte whose hands il may come save where exprassly agreed by our pnor
consent in wiaiting

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Compaanies Act 2006 as apphcable lo imited | ab lily pannershups we are required to repart 1z yau { In gur opinior

+ wa haya nal oblamed ail the information and explanations we require for our audil; or

» adequaie accounling records have not been kept by the LLP z: relums adequale for our aud | have nol been raceived from branches not
visited by us, o¥

= the LLP financial sialemenls are nol in agreemani with the accounting records and relums

We have no exceplions |0 report ansmg from this responstbilily

Gilly Lord {Senior Stalutory Audilor)
for and on behall of PacewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accounlanis and Slalulory Auditors
London

July 2023
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the ycar cnded 30 Apnil 2023

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 Aprit Note 2023 2022
£m £m

frestated)*®

Revenue 4 1062 1,96%
Other aperating mcome 3 3

Qperating costs

Staff and related costs 5 (964} {869}
Oiher operaling costs (273} (268}
Net ympawmient losses on financial asscts 26 (14) 20)
Operating profit 814 815
Finance income 3 3

Finance cosls (24} 21)
Finance costs - net 3 (21) {18)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND MEMBERS' REMLNFRATION AND

PROFIT SHARE 73 797
Members remuneration charged as an capense 9 (20) (18)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AVAILABLF FOR PROFIT SHARE AMONG

MEMBERS L] 773 770
Inceme 1as expense 10 anh {40)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YF AR AVAILABLE FOR PROHIT 142 739

SHARE AMONG MEMBERS

Fhe results derive from continuwing operations

* Refer note 28 for restatement of previous ycar financial statements for reasons explamed in that note
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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financsil Statements for the year ended 30 Apri 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 30 April Note 2013 2022
£m £m
fresiatedi*

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR AVAILABLE FOR PROFIT
SHARE AMONG MEMBERS 742 739

ftems that v ill not be reclassified subsequent!y to the Consohdated income

Statement
Actuarial pain on defined benefit pension scheme 2t 17 123
Deferred tan charge relaling to tiems nul reclassified 15 - 150

Items thar may be reclassified subsegiremly to the Consolidated Income Siarement

Net foreign exchange differences recopmsed within reserves 24 3 49
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 51 113
TOTAI COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE YEAR 793 862

* Refer nate 28 for restatement of presiews vear financial statements for reasons explamed i that note
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Asatl
As at 30 April Note 2023 2022 May 2021
Em £m £m
(restated)®  (restated)®
ASSETS
Property. plant and equipment 13 73 6% 12
Right-of-use assets 27 453 329 31
Finance [easc receivable - non-cumrent 27 70 98 12¢
Deferred tax asset 10 1 1 51
Total Non-Current Assets 597 493 554
Accrued income 26 376 369 308
Trade and other receivables ts 601 520 457
Finance lease receivable - current 27 24 24 23
Amounts due from members 16 B7 £1 88
Cash and cash ¢cquivalenls 17 232 378 370
Total Current Asscts 1,320 1,372 1.243
TOTAL ASSETS 1,917 1865 1,797

LIABILITIES

Trade and other pay abics 8 506 392 451
Fmplovee benelit obliganons 20,21.22 18 21 21
Provisions 20 - 1 2
Lease habiluy - corrent 27 a1 4 87
Members' capitat - current 23 28 31 3!
Tetal Corrent Liahilides 643 639 598
Fmploy ce benefin ebligations 20 21.22 207 266 429
Provisions 20 39 Rt 28
| east habiity - non-current 27 545 461 475
Members' capral - non-current 23 86 111 126
Total Non-Current Liabilities 877 892 1,058
TOTAL LIABILATIES 1,520 1531 1,656
TOTAL EQUITY 397 334 141
Toral Liabilities Fxcluding Yembers' Interests Classified As Liabilities 1,358 1,324 1428

Net Assets OF Members Excluding Members' Interests Classified As

Liabhilities 24 559 241 372
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Fwnancial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

CONSOLIDATED BALAMCE SHEET

As at 30 April

REFRESENTED BY:

Provision for annuities due to current members
Nembers' capital - current

Members' capital - non-current

Members' interesis classified as habiliies
Reserves

Taotal members' interests;

Amounlts due from members

Provision for annuities due 1o current members
Members' capital - current

Members’ capital - non-current

Reserves

CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP

Note

20,22
23
23

16
20,22
23
23

Asatl

2023 2022 May 2021
£m fm fm
{restatedj*  frestared)*

48 63 744
28 3t 31
86 111 126
162 207 231
367 334 141
589 541 n

(87 (81 (88}
48 65 4
28 31 it
86 11 126
397 334 141
472 460 284

* Refer note 28 for restatement of prev ous year financial statements for reasons explamed o that note

The financial statements on pages |9 1o 69 have been approved by the members and were signed on

Adams, designated member

Charles Adams
Chifford Chance | | P
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for tie year ended 30 Apnl 2623

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP BALANCE SHEET

Asatl
As 8130 April Note 2023 22 ey 2021
£m £m £m
(restated)*  frescated)™
ASSETS
Investments 12 225 225 5
Property, plant and equipment 14 14 12 9
Right-of-use assets 2 122 125 120
Finance lease receivable - non-current 27 69 91 107
Total Non-Current Assets 430 153 241
Accrucd income 26 162 163 136
Trade and other receivables [ 660 529 478
Finance lease recervable - current 27 17 17 17
Cash and cash equivalents 17 96 138 136
Total Current Assets 935 847 167
TOTAL ASSETS 1,365 1,300 1,008
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18 592 592 592
Amounts due te members 16 35 36 7
Employvee benefit abligations 20,2122 13 19 18
Provisions 20 . { 2
t case habilily - curren? 27 16 45 44
Members' ¢apiial - current 23 28 31 31
Total Current Liabilities 716 124 604
t.mploy ce benefit ubligations 20.21.22 193 248 138
Provisions 20 28 44 17
Lease liabhwy - nen-curren 27 20 239 276
Members' capital - nen-current 23 86 I 126
Total Non-Current Liabilities 527 662 5587
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1243 1,386 1,251
TOTAL EQUITY 122 (86) (243)
Total Liabilities Exeluding Certain Yembers' Interests Classificd As e
Liabilities” 1.087 +188 1.029

et Assets/(1.iabilitics) Of Members Excluding Certain Members'
Interests Classified As Liabilities 24 278 112 {21)
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CLIFFORD CHANCELLP
Financial Statemenis for the vear ended 3¢ Apnl 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP BALANCE SHEET

Asatt
As at 30 April Note 2023 2022 \fav 2021
Em £m fm

fresiated)*®  (resiated)*®
REPRESENTED BY:

Provision for annuities due to current members 20.22 42 56 65
Members' capetal - current 23 28 3 31
Members' capnal - non-current 23 86 L1 126
Members' interests classified as liabilities 156 198 222
Reserves 122 (86) {243)
278 112 (21)
Total members' interests:
Amounts dug to members (not capital in nature)” 16 35 15 7
Provision for annunties due to cucrent members 20,22 42 36 63
Members' caputal - current 23 28 3l 3]
Members' caputal non-current 23 1] il 126
Resenes 122 (86) (243)
313 148 (14)

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companics Act 2006. the LLP has not presented its own income stalcment A profit of £648m
(2022 £377m (restated)) is included within the financial statemients of the LLP

* Refer note 28 for restatement of previous year financial statements for reasons explained in that note

# [n presentmg the Limited Liablity Partnership Balance Sheet. 1otal liabilities arc also presented excluding those members'
intercsts which as per accounting standards are classifed as liability but which we regard as capntal in nature

[he finanaial statements on pages 19 (o 69 have beent approved by the members and were signed on |3 July 2023 by Charles
Adams. designated member

Charles Adams
Chifford Chance {1 1 P
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 10 April 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY

Balance as at 1 May 2021
Restatement adjustiment {note 28}
Balance as at | May 2021 (restated)

Profit for the financial year available
for profit share among members*

Other comprehensive income for the year®

Total comprehensine meeme for the
sear

Profut distnbunens and related tax
Change o provision for annuities
Change im members' capital (note 23)

Ralance a< at 30 April 2022

Profit tor the financial vear avalable

for profu share among members

Other comprehensive income for the year
Iotal comprehensine income for the year
Profit distnbutions and related 1ax
Change m provision for annuitics
Change in members' capital (note 23)

Balance as at 30 April 2023

* See note 28 for details on the restatement

Provision
for  Members'
Foreign Total Annuities Capitai  Members'
Exchange Other Reserves cfassified as  classified as  Capital &
Reserves Reserves Equity finbilities tiabifities Reserves
£m fm £m Im £ £m
(restaied)  (restared)  (restated)

35 106 141 74 157 372

8 t] - - - .

43 98 141 74 157 n

- 739 739 - -

739

49 74 123 - - 123

19 813 862 - - 862
- {669) {669) - - {66%
- : - 9) - 9
- (13) 115;

02 242 334 63 142 sd1

- 742 742 . 742

3 i7 5t - 3!

34 759 793 - 793
- (730) (730 . (730
- M - ) - fi7)
- 128) 128)

126 271 397 43 HE 359
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Aprdl 2023

LIMITED LEABILITY PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at 1 May 2021
Restatement adjustment (note 28}
Balance as a1 1 May 2021 (restated)

Profil for the financial year available
far profil share among members®

Other comprehensive income for the
vear*

Total comprehensive income for the
sear

Prafit distributions and related lax*
Change in provision for annu:tics
Change 1n members’ capital {note 23)

Balance as at 30 April 2022

Prafit for the financial yeor available
for profit share among members
Onwher comprehensine income for the
year

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Profit distributions and related tax
Change i provision lor annuitics

Change m members' eapital (note 23)

Balance as at 30 April 2023

* See note 28 for details on the restatement.

Members'
Foreign Oth Total Provision for Capital

Exchange o ! '" Resenes Annuities  classiffed  Members'
Reserves CSErves Equity classified as as Capital &
fiabilities  liabilities Reserves

£m £m fm £m £m £m
(resiated)  (resiated) (resiated)
26 (387} (361) 65 157 {139}

3 115 118 - - 8
29 (272} (243) 635 137 21)

- 37 3717 - - 377

17 78 95 - - 95

17 455 472 - - 472

- 315 (315) - - {313}

- - - 9 - It/

. . . - fis) (15}

46 (132) {86) 56 142 1i2

- 648 648 - B 648

13 17 30 - - 3n

13 665 678 - 678

. (470) {470} - - 47

- - - t14) - (1)

- - - - (28) 28)

59 63 122 42 114 278
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financiai Statements for the year ended 30 Apnil 0123

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Y ear ended 30 April 2023 2022
Note £m £m
frestoted)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before tax and members' remuneration and profit share 793 797

Interest pard 8 24 19

Interest received 8 () 3
Depreciation 13.27 B4 18

Contributions to defined benefit pension scheme 2 24) (22)
Amounts credited for annuity obligations 22 (10 (3)
Annuiies pad 1o former pariners 22 @n 20)
(Decrease)ancrease in property and other provisions (12 13

Remuneration 10 members 9 (19 {18)
Operating cashflow before movements in working capital 812 841

Increase in accrued income 4 (36}
Increase i recenables (73 {36)
Increase in pay ables 6 26

Cash generated from operations 739 758

Income taxes paid (33) (22)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 706 733

Cash flows from investing activifies:

Purchase of property. plant and equipment 13 (29) [15)]
Proceeds from subleasc 27 26 26

NET CASH (USEDYGENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (&) 1!

Cash Mlows from financing activities:
Draw:ngs and distnbunons to members {708) {632)
Repavment of fease habihties {includnge

wnterest paud £14m (2022 £12m)) 2 i Hon
Capual nct repayments 10 members. 23 (28) (13
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (853) {748)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (150) 4
Cash and cash equivalents at begirming of vear EXL) 3t
F ftects of foreign exchnge rale changes 4 12
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR i7 232 378
Reconciliation of liahilities arising from financing activities:
2013 2022
Members Members
Caphal Capital
£m m
Opening 142 137
Financing cash flows N R
Capnta’ transferred (28) (13)
Closing 114 142
Net Financing  Financing Translation
Leasc Liabiliics Opening  Additions  cash flows charge  difference Closing
fm fm £m fin fm £
For the yeur ended 3 Apr. 2023 333 178 (in i4 6 636
For tw year ended 34 Apnl 2522 562 73 (101} 12 7 555
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Firunc al Statenents for the year ended 30 Apnil 2023

LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 30 April Note 2023 2022
n £m
{restated)
Cash flows from gperating activities:
Profit before tax and membets' remuneration and profit share 654 404
Interest paid 16 10
Interest received ) &)
Depreciation 14.27 23 24
Contributions (o defined benefit pension scheme 2 (24 (13}
Amounts credited for annuity obligations {1 (3
Anmuties paid to former partners 22 (i8) (18)
(Decrease) increase in property and other provistons (13) 14
Dividend income* (158) -
Impaimment of financial assets 1 2
Operating cashflow before movements in working capital 468 415
Decrease/(increase) in accrued income 1 (29
Decrease/(increase} in recenables 129 53
Increase/{decrease) in pavables 149 (1)
Cash generated from operations 489 332
Income taxes paid (9) {10)
NET CASH GENERATED FRQM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 180 il
Cash flow s from iny esting activities:
Purchase ol property, plant and equipment 4 6 8
Proceeds from sublease 20 18
Divdend receved* 10 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING 24 10
Cash flows from financing activities:
Drawings and distributions 10 members (459) (267)
aymen- of lease [abiliies (including mierest pan .
f:::‘ ?202: o, {ine g mlerest paid (59) T
Capual nei repas ments to members 23 (28) (13)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {546) (331)
NET (DECREASE)Y INCREASE 1N CASILAND CASH (42) 1
Cash and cash equivalents at begimming of year 138 136
f-tfects of foreign exchange rate changes - |
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 17 96 138
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
2023 2022
Members Alembers
Capital Capital
fm Em
Opening 142 137
Financing cash flows . .
Caputal wansferred (28) {13}
Closing 114 142
Net Financing Financing Transhition
Lease Liab hties Opening  Additions  cash flows charge  difference Closing
£m tin £mn £ £ £m
f'o. the veas ended 3+ Apnil 2073 304 13 (5% 7 | 266
for the year ended 30 Apnl 2022 320 26 (49) 6 ] 304

*Chiford Chance | LP recerved dividend income of £138m during the year (222 £mil), of which £10m was received w cash and

the remamniag £148im was offset against an imira-group pavable balance
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fmang¢iat Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General

Chfford Chance LLP is a lirmted hability pannershup registered m England and Wales and with offices in poncipal
business cenires worldwide. Clifford Chance LLP is the ultimatc parent of the Clifford Chance Group.

2 Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

b

—

These financial statements present the consohdated aad standalone resulis of Clifford Chance LLP and s subsidiary
catities for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

The consolidated and standalone financial statements of Chifford Chance LL.P have been prepared in accordance
with UK adopled intemational accounting standards 1n comformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 as applicable to | imited I.iability Parinerships reporting under those standards.

The Group has applicd the follovwng amendmenis for the first time for thewr annual reporting period commencing |
May 2022

+ Property, Plant and Equipement Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments o 1AS 16

+ Onerous contracts — Cost of 1 ulfilling a Contract ~ Amendments to 1AS 37

= Annual Improvements t 1FRS Standards 2018-2020. and

« Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to [FRS 3

The amendments listed above did not hase amy impact on the amounts tecognised 1in priar peneds and are not
expected 0 sigmficantly affect the current or fulure periods

Certan new accounting standards and mterprelauans have been published that are not mandatory for 3¢ April 2023
reporting periads and have not been carly adopted by the Group. We are i process of assessing the impact of the
implementation of IFRS 17 on our aceounung tor annuitics dug 1o members Ne other accounting standards are
expected 1o have a material mmpact on the Group sn the current or futuee reporting periods and on fereseeable future
transactions

Refer 1o note 28 for restatement af previous year financial suatements for reasons explained m that nate
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements mcorporate the financial staternents of Clifford Chance LLP and its subsidiany
ennitres Subsidian entities are those entines cantrolled by Chifford Chance L1 P. which may be partnerships. himited
Liabihty partnerships or scparate corporate entities Control exists when Clifford Chance | LP 1s exposed 10, or has
rights to_ variable retums from s tivolyement with the entity and has the ability 10 affect thuse returns through s
power 1o direct the activities of the entity The financial statements of subsidiary entilies are mcluded i the
consolidated financial statements from the dale that contral commences until the date that control ceases. As
permitted under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate income statemient 15 presented for Clifford
Chance LLP

Intra-group balances and transachons are ¢lminated in the consohidated financial statements
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
I'nancial Stalements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2023

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

¢) Revenue

d

¢

-

—

Revenue represents amounts chargeable to chents for professional services provided, excluding extemal
disbursements where the Group acts as an agent and sales tax. The Group 1s generally paid in arrears for s services
invoices are typically payable within 30 to 60 davs

The Group provides services 1o clients under a contract or matter. In most instances. services ithin a matter are not
considered distinct and are therefore accounted for as a single performance obligauon However. where a contract or
matter requires services that are capable of being distinct. are distinct in the context of the contract and are accounted
for as separate performance obligations. revenue 1s allocated to each of the performance cbhigation based on a
standalone fee

Typically performance obligations are saiisfied over ime as services are provided. because the clhient receives and
uses the benefits simultancously Revenuc for vanable time-based contracts, 1s recogmised as the customer 1s recening
these services For fixed or capped fee contracts, revenue is recogmsed based on the proportion of the service
perfonnance with an imput method used to measure progress for each performance abligation The mput method used
15 the value of tme recorded 1o date relative to the total value of time expected 1o be incurred to complete the scope of
the matter The Croup has applied the practical expedient of IFRS 15 paragraph 121 10 not disclose mformanon
about remaming performance obligations as the performance obligations are part of contracts or matters with an
arigial expected duration of one vear or less

Revenue for services which ss contingent and dependent on external events ¢for example the completion of a
transaclion hsting or fund formation), 1s recognised when the event 1s highly probabie and a significam reversal 1s
unlthely The revenue constrant 1s applied unul such time as the event has occurred. conuingent fees have been
confirmed wath the chient or there remams latle uncertainty that the event wall oceur

The valuation of accrued ncome and calculaticn of revenue 15 dependent on judging the ikely engagement oulcony
for matters with a contingent fee amangement

Members' remuneration, drawings and distributions

The partters who are not members of the LI P recenve remuneration on an equivalent basis to members. [her
remuneration is presenled n the consolidated icome statement Lnder ‘Stafl and related cosis'. Remuneration which 1s
not prafil-retated and not chseretionan that 1s pawd to certdie partners whiv are members 15 treated as a charge agamnst
prafits and is presented in the consclidated meome staternent nnder ‘Menibers' remuneration charged as an expense’

Partners are paid a monthly dravang in advance of the calculation and pay ment of profit distributions. Such amounts
are classified as amounts due from members within current assets Distributions of profits 10 members are recogmsed
withim equity when the distribution occurs.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the foreign exchange rate ruling on the date of the Iransaction
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are ranstated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling on that date Foreign exchange differences ansing are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, The presentation currency of the Greup 1s Pound Sterling (GBP).

I'he resubts of affices. which do not prepare their Nnancial statements m GBP. are translated into GBP ot the average
rates for the year which approximate to the rates at the date of the transactions The balance sheets of these offices are
ranslaied at the exchange rate ruling on the balance sheet date | xchange differences arising from the retranslation of
opomng net asseis. logether wath the difterence betwcen the income statement translated at the average and closing
exchangte rates. and certam exchange difterences ansmg on the disinbution of profits to members, are reeorded n the
forciun exchange reserve
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CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Fimancral Statements for the year ended 30 Apnif 2023

2 Significant accounting policics (continued)

]

~

g

h

-

Property. plant and equipment

Property, piant and equipment s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment toss.
Depreciation 13 charged (o the mcome statement on a straight-line basis over the esumated useful lives of the assets.
The estmated useful lives arc as follows

| easchold improvemenis - 10 15 years, or hie of lease 1f shorter
Office and IT equipment
- Personal computers and small IT assets - 2 -5 years
= Other equipment - 3 -5 years
Furmiure and fittings B 310 vears
Intangible assets

Costs associated with the development of the global accounting and practice management sy stem, including imternal
costs directly attributable to deselopment werc recognised m the financial statements as an intangible asset The
Firm expected to derive economic benefits from the development costs capitalised in this manrer over a penod of ten
vears These mtangible asscts are now fully amortised

Soflnare as a Service (SaaSt confipurabion and custonisation costs are expensed as incurred unless they creale a
separately wentiftable asset controlled by the }irm, wm which case they are capilabised

Impairment of tangible and intangible asscts

At each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the caming amounts of 1ts tangible and intangible asscis to determine
whether there 15 any mdication that those assets have suftered an mparmient loss, I€any such mdication exists. the
reconerable amount of the assel v estimaled e order 1o determune the extent of any impawrment loss 1f the
recoverable wmoumt of an asset s imated e be less than its carmy mg amount, e carry ng amount s redueed 115
recorerable amount and the impairment 10ss 1 recogmsed as an expense immediately

Pensions

i Defined contribution plans
Contnbutions (0 defined comnbution pension plans are recognised as an expense w the meome stalement as
mewred

ii.  Defined beueflt scheme
Defined benefit scheme the assets of which are held in separate trustec-admnistered fund. s funded by
pay ments from the employer. taking account of the recommendations of an independent qualificd actuan.

Full actuanal aluations of the principal scheme are carned out every three years and the scheme actuan
updates these at each balance sheet date

Defined benefit schemes are accoumed for under IAS 19 (revised) Emplovee Benelits The retirement benefits
abligation represents the present value of the obligation (o proside benefits. less the far value of the schemes' assets.
The financing costs of the schemes are recopmsed i the consolidated mcome statesent and actuarial pains and
losses are recogiised e ludl i the consolidated statement of comprehensive meeme Net anterest 1s caleulated by
apply g the discount rate (e the net delined pension labilas
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2 Significant accounting palicies {continued)

]

k)

m

—

Annuities

The cost of providing annuitics to current and retired partners s determined annually by an independent actuany and
charged to the income statement over the estimated servece lives of the partners

Provisions

A pravision is recognised in the balance sheet when there 15 a legal or constructive present obfigation as a result ol a
past event. it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligaton Provisions are deterrnined by discountmg, 1f the effect 15
material, the expected future cash flows al a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the hme value of
money.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent lLiabilities include possible obligations whose existence will be confirmied by uncertain future events that
are not wholly within the control of the entity and oblhiganons that are not recognised because their amount cannot
be measured reliably or because sertlement 15 not probable Where contmgent habilines exisi. they are disclosed in
the nates 1o the financial statements, See note 20 for further detuls

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised i the group s bafance st-cet when the Group becomes a party
1o the contractual provisions of the mstrument

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated imparrment losses.

Trade and other receivables
Ttade and other receivables are measured at cost less any irpainment  mciuding an expected credut Toss
provision

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalemts comprise cash in hand or demand deposns and other short-term highly hquid

investments

Accred Income
Accrued mcome 1s measured at the selling value of unbilled hours chargeable to clients less any impaiment
inctuding an expected credit loss provision.

Trade and other paynbles
Trade and other payables. including borrowings. are measured a1 fawr value on meeption then subsequently at

amortised cost

In refation Lo the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credut loss model The Group applies
the simplified approach 10 measure expected credi losses using a hfetime expected loss allowance for trade
receds ables and accrued income. In case of investments m subsidharies the LLP carries out annual imparment tests
1o ascertan 1f the camyng value of such investments are impaired These 1ests comprise a companison between the
camying value of such investments and the net asset value of such subsidianies In some snstances. the future
estimated profit or loss are considered or valuaticns of subsidianes are prepared  Valuahions for impaimient esis are
based on established market multiples or risk-adjusted future cash flows onver the estumated uselul ife of the asset.
where mned. discounted using appropriate interest rates The assumptions relating to future cash flows. estitated
uscful lives and discount rates are based on business forcuasts and are iherefore. mherentls judgemental Future
events could cause the assemptions used i these impaiment 1ests to change with a consequent adverse effect on the
futture resulis ol the subsidrarics.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
n) Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract 15 or contains a lcase at the inception of the contract A lease conveys the
night to direct the use and oblain substantially all of the economic benefits of an dentified asset for a peniod of ime
mn exchange for consideration

AS alessee

The Group leases buildings for 1its ofTice space The leases of ofTice space ypically run for a defined peniod, but
maj have extension options Coniracts may contan both lease and non-lease components For property leases the
Group has elected 10 separate lease and non lease components and allocates the consideration i the contract (o the
lease and non-lease components based on ther relative stand-alene prices Lease lerms are negotated on an
dividual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions The lease agreements do not impose
covenants other than the secunity interests wn the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as secunty for borrowing purposes

Leases are recogmised as a nght-of-use asset and a corresponding hiabihity at the date at which the leased asset 1s
available for use by the Group |.easc liabilities melude the net present value of the followwng lease payments
- fixed pay ments,

variable lease payment thal are based on an index or a rate. nvtrally measured using the mdex or rale as at the
commencement date_ and
- payments of penallics for termsnating the lease 1t the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option

t ease payments t6 be madve under reasonably certam extenston options are alse mcluded w1 the measurcment of the
Itability The lease payments are disciinted using the interest e implicit m the lease I that rale canmont be readily
determuned. which is the case for leases in the Group. the lesse's meremental borrowang rale 1s used, being the rate
that the indiadual fessee would have to pay 1o borrow the funds necessary o obtam an asset of a simifar value o
the nght-of-use asset in a sinnlar ccononue cns wronsuent swath sinular ierms: security and condions

To determing the incremental borrowmg rate the Group
- uses a relevant corporate bond rate witlun cach specific region and
makes an adjustment spectiic to he lease term and the nisk m each region relative to the overall markel

The Group 1s exposed to potental fulure increases m v anable lease payments based on an index or rate. which are
not ncluded m the leasc diabihty unhil they take effeet When adjustments W lease pay ments based on ah index or
rate take cffect. the lease habihty 15 teassessed and adjusted against the right-ofuse asset The Group has no
varable lease pavments for its properts leases other than those Iinked to an index or a rate

The nght-of-usc asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the imal amount of the lease Liability adjusied
for any lease payments made al or before the commencement date. less any lease mcentives recenable, plus any
imitial direct costs incurred and an estumate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or (o vestore the
underly ing asset or the site on which 1t s located less any lease meenines recened

Right-of-use asscts are gencrally deprecialed over the shorter of the asset's useful Life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis,

The practical expedients for shori term keases were ot adopled for the leases within the Group. The Group also has
low value lcases that are pnimanly classificd as office equipment and a foew motor vehicle leases  The office
cquipment mostly comprise printers and photocopters The Group has not adopted the pracncal expedient for short
termi or low value leases and have mcluded all these leases on the balance sheet
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2 Significant accounling policies {continued)

n} Leases (continued)

Q

—

As a lessee (conlinued)

There are no material kwrmination options mcluded m the property leases across the Group. The Group has included
some material extension options for the Singapore & Australian office leases as management 15 reasonably certan
the extension options held by the Group will be exerctsed Leases due to expire within |2 months of year end were
examined to see if there were any extension options exercisable by lessee that may potentially be exercised In
considering all the facts and circumstances the Group determuned that none of these leases expiring in 12 months
should include an extended lease term

As 8 lessor
The Group also sub-let some of its office buitdings, pnimarily wn the U K and the UUS The Group deternunes at cach
sub-lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease

To classify each lease. the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset 11 this is the case. then the lease is a finance lease
if not, then it is an operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor. it accounts for its interest in the head lease and the sub-lease separately
11 assesses the lease classification of & sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
not with reference Lo the underlying assel.

Lucome taxation

[ncome tax payable on pannership profits 1s the personal hability of mdividual members 1n most junsdictions
includimg the UK. In some locations. income tax payable on partnership profits 15 the liabilny of the relevant
partnership. There is a separate tax charge in the come statement and a separate tas liabihity 1n the balance shect
tor such amounts payable by parnerships together with tax pay able by the curpuorate subsidiaries

Deferred 1ax 15 the tax expected to be pay able or recoverable on differences between the carmying amounts of assels
and lhiabilitzes m the financial statements of the Group's corperate subsidianes and the corresponding tas bases used
in the computation of taxable profit and s accounted for using the balance sheet liabihity method Deferred tax
tiabilimes are generally recognised for all 1axable temporany differences and deferred 1ax assets are recogmised to the
cxtent that it s probable that taxable profits wall be av ailable agamnst which deductible temporary diflerences can be
utilised 1n future The carnoimg amount of deferred (ax assets 15 reviewed al each balance sheet date and reduced 1o
the extent that st 1s no longer probable that sufficeent taxable prafits will be available 0 allow all or part of the assel
to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the 1ax rates that are expected 1o apply in 1he penod when the hability s settled or the
asset 15 realised based on tay laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted al the balance sheet
date w the relevant cnuntry  Deferred tax assets and labiliies are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to
set ofl" current tax asscts against current tax habilities and when they relate 10 income 1axes levied by the same
taxation authonty and the intention s to settle the current tax assets and habilitics on a net basis

Current and deferred tax are recogmised 1n the ncome statement. except when they relate © nems that arc
recogmised in the statement of comprehensive income or direetly m statement of changes i equity i which case,
the currenl and dueferred lax are also recogiused m the statement of comprehensive mcome or directiy i equily
respectinely
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

p) Members' capital

q

r

~—

—

Nun-L'S members are required to give a mimimum of not less than six months notice of retrement. whilst US
members are not required 1o give notice Members' capital which 1s measured at cost 1s repayable within six
months of retirement. Accordmgly, members' capual 1s required 1o be classified as a Tiability. with capuial duc o
LS and retinng parners classified as a current habitity, and the remaming liability classified as a non-current
tatututy

Critical accounting estimates & judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of financial statements in conformuy with [FRS requires the use of certain cntical accounung
cstimates and judgements, including judgements regarding the application of the accounting policies Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histonical experience and other factors, mcluding
expectations of future events, that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The cnitical accounting
csiumates and key sources of estimation applied in these financial staterments are set out below  Any significant
change 1n these estimates could have a matenial effect on the Group's financial position and results of operations
within the next year in terms of IAS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements'

Actearial assumptions

The penston habalities in respeet of the prineipal defined benefit scheme and the provisions for annuty pasments
ta current and retired pariners have been independenthy valued by actuanes based on information provided by
Chifford Chance LL.LP The assumptions are set out in notes 21 and 22 and have been detenmined having taken
advice from the independent actuanes

Leases - discowni rate

Guruen the absence of the wierest rate imphat i @ lease the Group has applied o methodology o determine the
lessee's incremental borrowmg cate  Thos rawe 1s determined as bemg the rate that the indeaidual lessee would have
10 pay 10 borrow the fiunds necessary o oblam an assel of @ simlar value to the nght of-use asset i a simadar
economic environment with sunilar terms. secunty and condivons An adjusiment 15 then made specific to the risk
factor 1in cach region

Guoing concern

The applicability of going concern basis 15 reviewed by the managemient taking inte accoumt the continued
availability of sufficient fundmg for the opgrations of the Group The Group's man sources of funding are
partiiers” capital. undistributed profits and borrowing facilities 7he current borrow mg faciities are desenibed in
note 19 and the availabiliy of these facshiies s dependent upon continued compliance with the applicable
financial covenams Regular finaneial forccasts ave prepared (o momitor the Group's funding requrements and
projected compliance with the covenants. Consideration is given o the potential business risks which could aflect
future compliance and the potential actions which could be taken to miugate the effect of these nisks The main
financial risks to which the Group ts exposed are described in note 26

It is considered chat the Group will be abie to contmue to comphy with the applicable covenants for a penod of #
Yeast twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements. given the current tevel of cash at bank
and forecasted trading perfannance

Accordingly, the gomng concern basis of accounting has been adopted in preparng these hinancial statements
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

s) Related party transactions

Within the Group financial statements, balances between Chifford Chance LLP and its subsidiary entities have
bezn eliminated on consohdation Todal 1ransactions with and year end balances held with other related parties are
disclosed in note 25.

Remuneration of the Executive Leadership Group members, who are related parties. is disclosed in note 25

Entities included in the consolidation

Chifford Chance LLP practices through overseas branches in Abu Dhabi. Amsterdam, Beymng, Brussels, Dubar and
Shanghai. As a1 30 April 2023, Clifford Chance LLP also had the followmg undertakmgs. all 100°0 controlled, except
as dctailed 1n the section headed “Alhances” below

The principal activity of the entities histed below 1s the prosision of legal services with the exception of those marked
below as follows:

(1) entities which provide senaces o other Group enlities, or
{2) entities which hold invesiments in other Group undertakings, of
(3) entities which are dormant

The UK subsidiaries annotated with an ™' from the following list of subsichanes are exempt from the Companies Act
2006 requirements relating 10 the audit of their mdividual accounts by virtue of Seclion 479A of the Compames Act
2006 as Clifford Chance | | P has guaraniced the subsidiary companies under Section 479C of the Companies Act
2006.

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Clifford Chance Australia Level 24 Brookfield Place. 19 Carrington Street
Svdiey NSW 20r0 Australia
Clifford Chance Austraha Pty Limited {2+ Ausiralia Level 24 Brook field Place. 10 Carrington Street
Sydnex NSW 2000 Ausiralia
Clifford Chance Australia Services Pty Australia Level 24. Brookdicld Place. 1¢ Carrington Strect
[ wmned (1) Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
Chfford Chance Australia Nominee Piv I.1d Australia Level 24, Brookficld Place. 10 Camrington Street
(k) Sydney NSW 2000 Ausiralia
Chifford Chance Ltda Brazil Rua Funchal 418 }51h Fioor, SP 04551-060
S30 Paulo Brazil
Clftord Chance Prague LLP* Czech Republic 10 Upper Bank Street. London, EI14 5)J. UK
Clfford Chance Ewrope LLP France 10 Upper Bank Street, London, E14 5)J, UK.
Chiford Chance SELATA ¢ 1) Frauce I. rue d'Astorg. CS 60038. 75177 Paris
{edex 08. IFrance
Chifford Chance Services GmbH 1 1) Genram Kolner Strafie 3 a 65760 Eschbom Germany
Chfford Chance Gemmnany JhunghofstraBe 14. 60311 Frankfurt am Mam
Steverberatungsgesellschaft mbh ¢ 1) Germanm
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3 Entities included in the consolidation - continued

Name of entity

CluTord Chance Partnerschafl mit
beschrankier Berufshaflung (2)

Clifford Chance Tech GmbH

Chiftord Chance GmbH

Chfford Chance (2)

Brecon Limnted (1)

Legibus Secretaries (Hong Kong) Limited
{(1&2}

Chifford Chance Limited (3)

Chiford Chance Business Services Privale
Limited ([}

Swidio Legale Associdlo in Associazione
con Chifprd Chance

Clifford Chance (Tokyo ) L1 I

Chifford Chance | aw Offlice

Chiftord Chance (Gauhohuho kyodo hgan)
Chiford Chance

Chifford Chance GP (2}

Chifford Chance. Janicka. kruzewsk.
Namiothiewicz y Wspéintcy sph

Chfford Chance Badea SPRL

Chfford Chance CIS Limited*#
Chifford Chance Pte Lumited

Chford Chance Intemational L1 P*

Chifford Chance SL P U
Molcglade AB

Chftard Chance ¢ Fhaland) I wnted 134
Judde Holdings 1 iovited (3

Chfbrg Chance Damsmanlik Hznetlon
Avuhatlik Ortakhigi

Chiftord Chance Damigmanlk Hizmetlen
Limuted Swket (1)

Country of
Operation

Germany
Germany
Germany
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

India

Italy

Japan

Japan

Japan

T unembourg
I uxembiurg
Poland
Romansa

Russia
Singapore

Singapore !
Morocco
Span
Sweden
Thailand
Thailand

Furhey

Turhey
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Registered address

Junghofstrafie 14, 60314 Frankfur am Main
Germany

Junghofstraie 14, 6031 ( Frankfurt am Mam
Germany

Junghofstrafic 14, 6031 Frankfurt am Main
Germany

2Tth Floor, Jardine House, One Connaught Place.
Hong Kong

27th Floor, Jardine House, Onc Connaught Place.
Hong Kong

2hh Floor, Jardine House. One Connaught Place,
Hong Kong

Room A, 30th Floor, Jardine House. One
Connaught Place. Hong Kong

Fuirst Floer, Unit No 3, Ambience Comorate Tower
4, Plot No 3, Ambience Island. NH 8, Scc 26,
CGurgaon, Gurgaon, Harvana, 122001

Via Broletto 16, 20121, Milano, Italia

31 West 52nd Street. New York, NY 10019-6131,
UsA

Palace Bulldwg. 3rd floer. 1-1. Marunouchi 1.
chome Chivoda-ku Tokyo 100-0005. Japan
Palace Buwilding. 3rd floor. | |, Marunouch |-
chome. Chineda-ku, 1ohyo 100-0005, Japan
WERIWG D Charlede, B P 1147,1-1011

T uxcmbhourg. Grand-Buche de Luxcmbourg
10B31d G D Charlote, B P ild7.1-1011
Luvembowrg Grand-Duche de Lusembourg
Norway House. wl i.wowsha 19, 00-660 Warsaw.
Poland

Excelstor Center. 28-30 Acadenuiei Street. Sector 1
Bucharest, 010016, Romania

10 Upper Bank Street, 1.ondon. E14 311, UK
Manna Bay Financial Centre, 25th Floor. Tower 3.
12 Marina Boulevard. Singapore

10 Upper Bank Street, L.ondon, £14 5J). UK

Pasco de la Cateltana 110, 28046. Madrid. Spam
CrO TMF Sweden AB, Vasagalan 38 111 20,
Siockholm, Sweden

Level 11, Mercun Tower. 540 Pleanchit Road.
{uupine, Pathumivan, Bangkok. 10330, Thailand
{.evel 1, Merguny Tower, 340 Pleouchyl Road.
Lumpmi. Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330, Thailand
Kanynn Ofis Binasi hat 10, Buyukdere Cad. No.
183, Istanbul 34394 Turkey

hanyon Qfis Binast Kat 10, Buyukdere Cad No
183, Istanbul 34394, | urkes
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3}  Entities included in the consolidation - continueq

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Clifford Chance Newcastle Limited (1)* Uk The Lumiens St James Boulevard, Newcastle Helix.
Newcastle tprn Tyne, UK
Clfford Chance No 2 Linuted (2)* UK 10 Upper Bank Street. London, E14 510, Uk
Clifford Chance Germany LLP (3)* Uk 10 Upper Bank Street, London, E14 31 'k
(formerly Clifford Chance Deutschland
LLP)
Clifford Chance Nommnees No 2 1imited UK 10 L pper Bank Street, London, E14 51 1 Kk
(n*
Clifford Chance Pension Trustecs Limited UK 10 tipper Bank Street. London. E14 5J), 4 K
(H
Clifford Chance Properly Nominees UK 10 l'pper Bank Sireet, London, E14 31} [k
Limited {1)*
Clifford Chance Secretarics Limited (2)* Uk 10 {!pper Bank Street. London, E14 511, Uk
Mithras Limited (2) UK 10 Upper Bank Street. Londen. [ 14 S L'k
Moleplade Limited* UK 10 Upper Bank Sireer, London. C14 53, UK
Clifford Chance London Limited (1) Uk 10 Upper Bank Sireet, London, E14 513, UK
CC Woarldwide Linmted fndia/humwan 10 Upper Bank Street, London. E14 517, UK
and kemva
Clifford Chance Applied Solunons biited UK 10 Upper Bank Streel. London, E 14 5J). UK
Chifferd Chance Technology Limited* Uk 10 Upper Bank Streel. [ondon, C14 5JJ, UK
Clifford Chance Holdings LLP (1&2)* UK 10 Upper Bank Street, London, L14 51], UK
Clifford Chance Busingss Services UK 10 Upper Bank Strect. London, E14 501, UK
Holdings Limted (2)*
Clifford Chance US LI P 'S A 30 West SInd Strect. Now Yok, NY
10019-6131. USA
Chfford Chance | aw birm (3} Saudy vrabia  C'O Abuhimed Alsheikh Alhagbant Law [

Bwlding 15. The Business Gate King Khaled
[memational Airport Road Cordoba District
Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

# The finn ceased opuratiors 1n Russia from 31 May 2022, after which the provision of legal services from our
existing Moscow ofhee ceased Fxisting Russtan Cient work was transferred to a new independent law firm

Alliznces

“whe Group has emtered it coatraciual arrangements with the cutiies below such as 1o require theer resulis to be
consohidated wath the financigl statements of the Group

Name of entity Country of Registered address
Operation
Tavenagh Law LLP Sngapare Manna Bay Fancial Centre, 23th Floor.
Tower 3. 12 Manna Boules ard, Smgapore 018982
Cifict Avukatih Ortakhgt Turkey Kanyen Ofis Binast Kal 10, Buyukdere Cad No
{also known as Ciftci Aterney Parinership) 185 Istanbul 34394, Turkes
Clifford Chance Sociedade de Consultores  Bracil Rua Funchal 418 13th Floor, P 04351-060

530 Paulo, Brazil

With effect from | May 2023 Clifford Chance LI I* and Abubumed Alsheibh Alhagbant T aw 1im (AS&IL have
entered mto an agreement to form a joint venture in Saudr Arabia. The joint sentre will be known as AS&H
Clifford Chance having registered oltice in Rivadh Chifford Chance L! P holds 50% of the voting nights in tins
Joint venture
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4. Revenue

The Group derves revenue from the provision of professwnal services 1o clients typically over ume m the foliowing

geographic and client segments.

Revenue by geography

2023 2022

fm £m

United Kingdom 764 687
Continental Europe 634 §22
Asia Pacific 332 344
Amcricas 268 259
Middic East 64 57
2,062 1.969

2023 2922

Revenue by chent segment fm im
Financial Investors 738 704
Comuorate Enterprises 736 631
Banks 508 531
(nhers R0 103
2,062 | 969

T'he Group has tecogmsed accrued meome of £376m (2022 £369m) i relalion w contracts with customers Accrued income

anses when the Group flfills contraciual performance obligations ahead of bilhing its clicats.
The Group also recognised a Joss allow ance for acerucd income of £2m {2022 £3m). also see note 26

5. StafT and related costs

Consolidated LLFP
2423 2022 2023 2022
£ £m fm Em
Salanes and othey remuncration vf non~members 761 684 71 67
Social secunity contributions 62 34 7 6
Peasien contribulions 23 23 5 b1
Annunies eredit (note 22) (10 (5) 8] 3
Cther s1aff cosis 126 113 36 53
964 869 130 133
The monthly average number of padners and employvees
during the year was as follows:
Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
Nos Nos Nos. Nos
1otal panners 583 563 242 230
Assooiales and other fee eatners 2481 2.452 296 316
Todal (ramees 630 636 95 87
Adnmstrative and support stalt’ 3.017 3.010 241 234
6,741 5,661 874 867

The nranthly average number of members meluded above for the Group 1s 480 (2022 457)

1he amount of prolit for the current year which 15 attnbutable 1o the member with the largest enulement to profit is £4 82m

(2023 £494m)
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6. Profit for the year

Profit before tax for the y ear available for profit share among members has been arrived ar afier charging/(crediting)

2023 2022
£m £m
frestated)
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (hote 13) 20 20
Depreciation on right-of use assets (note 27) 64 58
10jains \losses on foreign exchange® (21 5
Operaung lease mncome from sub tenants (note 27) 3i i3
* Sec note 28 for details on ihe restatement
7. Auditors’ remuneration 2023 2022
£m Em
The following amoums have heen charged againsi operating profit
[-ees payabic to the LLP's auditors for the audit of the 1 1 P's financial statements 11 10
Fees payabie to the auditers and their associates far other senices to the Group
- Fees for the audit of the | 1 P's subsidiany entuies pursuant to legislation 0s 03
Total audit fees 1 6 13
Audi-reiated assurance sen ices 02 01
Tavanon comphance ser ices 05 08
Other 1axation advisory services * 01 00
Other services and fees pay able 1n respect of associaled pension schemes 0l 01
Total non-audst fees 09 10
Total fees 1o auditors 25 23
* Other tanation advisony services 1s made up of services totalng w £74.952 (2022 £42 639)
8. Finance income and costs
2023 2022
£m £m
Finance income
Finance lease income from sub tenants {note 27) [P3] t3)
Interest income on bank deposts (3] -
(3} (3)
Finance costs
Pensions {note 21} 4 5
I nance charge on leasc llabihnes (note 27) 14 12
Annuilies (note 22) 3 2
Interest on tax payvmenlts | 2
24 21
kinance costs - net 21 18
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9. Mcembers' remuneration charged as an expense

Members’ remunerauon charged as an expense comprises the remuneration of certain partners who are members of Clifford
Chance LLP but shose remuncration is pot a share of profits and not discretionan amounung to £19m (2022 £16m), and a

charge of £1m (2022 £2m) for annuites {refer note 22)

10, Income tax expense

Current tax
LK corporatien fax
Overseas taves
Pnoc year adjustments

Deferred tax
In respect of accelerated capital allowances. bonus accruals & allowable losses
carried farvard

Income tax cxpense

2013 2022
£m £m
4 4
36 Fa!
9) 16
3l 41
(n
- (h
N @

In most locations, meluding the UK, mcome tax pay able un the allecation of profits 1o members 15 the personal hability of the

members and hence 18 not shown i these financial <staconts

Reconciliation of lax charge

Profit before taxanon”
Amounls subject to persenal tax*
Adyusted Profit before faxatin

Tax atl K standard corporate rate 19 4092 (2022 19%)

Permancnt difference betwscen the hinds of recogmtion of profits for tax and sccounting
1 ax effects of difTering os erscis L Fates

Prior y car adyustment

otal income lax cxpense

* Sce note 28 for detaals on the restatement

Amuunts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Deferred tax charge i the reporting perod and not recogmsed in the income
statement but directhy charged o other comprehensive income

Deferred tax asset
Deferred 1ax asselt movements during the current vear were as folions
Al the begimnmg of the year

Movement i the s car
Al the end of the year

23 2022
£m £m
(restated)

773 179
(380} {634)
193 145
38 28
- (8)

2 4

19) 16

31 40
2023 2022
£m £m

. 51
2623 2022
£m £m

I sl
- {30)

T I

The deferred tay asset 1s recognised i respeet of accelerated capual allowances, bonus accruals & allowable losses camed
forward In (e previous vear, the L Chiiford Chance London Limiited {"CCLL"} and the Trustee of thw Pension Scheme, n
which certam employees of CCHT paricipated had agreed under a ‘Flexible Apportienment Arrangement' to the transier of
the whole pension lability of CCUL o the LUP as on 30 November 2021 As a result. the deferred tax asset recogmsed in
¢l inrespeat of temporary differences related to the defined bencfit pension schemie was reversed in the previous 3y ear
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I11. Profit attributable to the Limited Liability Partaership

The profit for the financial y ear available for profit share among members dealt with m the financial statements of the parent

undertaking Chifford Chance LLP. 15 set out n note 24

12. Investments - LLP

Cast:

Balance as at | May 2021
Addiions*

Balance as at 30 Apnil 2022
Additions

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023

Impairment:

Balance as at | May 2021
Additions

Balance as at 30 Apnl 2722
Additions

Batance as at 30 Apnl 2023

Carrying amoint;
As at 30 April 2022
As al 30 April 2023

The subsidiaries of the [ P as at 30 Aprel 2023 are as follows

Name Direct shares
held (%)

Moleglade | inted 100

L afford Chance No 2 Limited 107

Clltord Chanee D ondon Lamited *

£m

220
225

225

225
225

Registered \ddress

10 Upper Bank Street Tondon | [45)) VK
10 Upper Bank Street, London L1430 UK
10 Upper Bank Street 1ondon, @ 14 5]) Uk

* In the previoas year, the LLP, Clifford Chance Londen Limited ("CCLL") and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme, m which
cenamm emp.oyees of CCLL panticipaied had agreed under a ‘Flesible Apportionment Amangement’ to the transfer of the
whaele pension hability of CCLL te the LLP as on 30 Nevember 2021 The outstanding pension liabihity on 30 Nowember
2021 was £220m The transfer was accounted for as a caputal contribution by the ELP wa CCLI and resulted in an increase m
invesiments by an amiount equeal to the et pension liabilny at the date of the transfer

Also refer note 3 for list of entities included in the consolidatien.

Pags 42



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2023

13. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assers - Consolidated

. ; Intangible
Property, plant and equipment assets
Leasehold Office and Furniture
. IT . Total
improvements equipment and Mittings

Cost: fm fm fm £m £m
Balance a$ at )} May 2021 118 77 28 223 51
toreign exchange movements 3 ] ] 5 -
Additions 4 10 1 15 -
Disposals {9) (5) (2} ) -
Balance as at 30 Apni 2022 116 83 28 221 51
Foreign exchange movements | - 1 2 -
Addinons 13 8 3 29 -
Disposals [¥3) 113 (2) {16) -
Balance as a1 30 Apnil 2023 128 B4 30 242 51
Accumulared depreciation:
Balance as at 1 May 2021 (68) [(2)] 2m (150 131
E oreign exchange moesements (2) {n (L) [€)] -
Depreciation chaege for the year {9) (9 (2) 201 -
Disposals [ 3 2 13 N
Balance as at 30 Apnil 2022 n (6K} 20 (162) 51y
Ioreign exchange movements (thy - - n .
Depreciation charge for the year ) (9 (2} 20
Disposals 3 7 2 14 -
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023 {78) {70) 21 (169} (51)
Carrying amaoitni:
As at 30 April 2022 43 15 7 63 -
As at 30 April 2023 30 14 9 73 -

The intangible asseis are capatalised software development costs and are fully amortised

Page 43



CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP
Financial Statenients for the year ended 30 Apnl 21;23

14, Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - LLP

, . Intangible
Property, plant and equipment assels
Leasehold Office arll'."j. Furniture
improvements equipment and fittings Total Software
Cost: fm fm £m fm fm
Balance as at 1 May 2021 11 39 E | 34 3l
Additions 4 4 8 .
Disposals {4) {2 {1 (7} -
Balance as at 39 April 2022 1 41 3 35 51
Additions 3 3 . 6 -
Disposals (2) (1) 3) -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 12 43 3 58 51
Accunuilated depreciation:
Balance as at | May 2021 (N (35) 13 43) 5h
Depreciation charge for the year [43] k)| - H
Dhsposals 4 2 - 6 -
Balance as at 3¢ April 2022 1y (36) 13) (43 (50
Depreciation charge for the year () » - ER
[hsposals 2 ! 3 .
Ratance as al 30 April 2023 (3) (38 13) (4] (31)
Carrying amount:
As al 30 Apnl 2022 7 5 - 12 -
Asal 30 Apnil 2023 9 5 - 14 -

I'he intangible assets are capstalised software development costs and are fully amortised
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I15. Trade and other receivables

Consolidated LLP
2623 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m fm
trestated)
Trade receivables 516 452 267 217
Amounts due from subsidian entities - - 353 274
Sundny recervables and prepayments 83 68 40 38
601 520 660 529

Furiher information regarding credn risk and the allowance for doubtful debts in relation to client receivables is given in note
26

There 18 no marterial difference between the farr value and carrying valuc of trade and other receivables, The amounts for
intercompany tesull from fees owed by other offices in respect of client matters which arise when the leading office issues a fee
note 10 the client and also in respect of wier-office charges for items such as management charges Also the amounts due from
subsidiany entities includes amounts 1n respect of distribuion and payvment of profits by the LLP on behalf of subsidiary
entities 1© Pantners of those subsidiary enities as per the partnership agreement. Such balances are interest free and repayable
on demand

16. Amounts due from and due to members

Amounts due lrom and due 10 members compnse drawings paid to members during the financial year, which are advance
payments 0 refation to the profit for the financial year avalable for profit share among members. together with advance
payments of members' personal trves, less net amounts wuthheld from prior year profit distributions but not yet paid over to the
tax authoritics 1 relanion to members’ pror year tax habilites

17. Cash and cash equivalcnts

Caonsolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£fm £m £t £m
Cash at bank and i hand 232 378 96 138
232 378 96 138

The cash and cash equivalents dhsclosed above and wn the statement of cash Nlows include £6m (LLP: £mil) (2022 Group £4m,
I LP £mb worth of cash at hank wlich are subyect to contractual restrictions and are therefore not available for general use.

There 1s ne material difference between the fair value and carrying value ol cash and cash cquivalents.

18, Trade and ather payahlcs

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
frestated)
Accounts payable 45 39 29 23
Amounts due to subsidiary entitics - - 406 406
Social sccurity and other taxes 21 19 | 1
Corporate and \ncome 1axes pavable 12 10 2 4
Capital of non-members 26 28 12 14
Undistribuled eamings duc to non-membets Pl 104 35 3
Other creditors 51 44 19 17
266 244 504 498
Accruals 216 229 64 73
Deferred mcome 24 19 24 19
506 492 592 192

There 1s no materzal difference betw cen the fair value and camung value of trade and other pavables

The amounts due to subsidiany entinies result from fees due 1o other offices m respecet of client matters which arise when the
leading office issues a tee note o the client and also i respect of mter-office charges for items such as management charges
Also the amoumts due 1o subsidiary entities mchwles amounts  respect of distribution and payment ol profits by the
subsidiary entities on behalfof the L1 P e Partners of those subsidiany entitics as per the partnership agreement. Such balances
are terest fice and repay able on demand
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19. Borrowings

No borrowings were oulstanding at the balance sheet date (2022 £nil). The average effecuive mterest rate was 3 (8%
(2022 1 02%)

A1 30 April 2023 available undrawn committed borrowing faciluties in both the Group and the LLP amounted to £150m (20,22
E130m) which expires in Apnl 2025

20. Provisions and Empleyce benefit obligations

Consolidated
Employce benefit obligations Provisions
Other
Pensions Annuities Property provisions Total
£m £m im fm £m

(note 21) (note 22)
Balance al ] May 2021 271 179 20 10 480
Charge(credut) during the year 3 n - 27 3
Amounts paid “ utilised / released (22} 20% B (2) [CE})
Net gamn duc to changes in actuarial (125 . i ) (125)
assumplions
Balance at 38 April 2022 129 158 20 33 342
Charge(credn) during the year 4 4) - 3 3
Amounts paid ¢ utlised / released (24) 21y - {19) {64)
Net gan due to changes in acluarial an ) . i un
assumptions .
Balance at 30 Apnil 2023 92 133 20 19 264

Previsions  Property

The Group 1s requared 1o restore cenan lessed prenuses (6 thar sopmal condion at the end of the respecine lease rms A
provision has been recogmsed for the present value of the estunated restoration expenditere

Provisions — Other provisions

Other provisions includes provision relaled (o those matiers for which the tx detenmimation 1s uneertam but 1t s considered
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority The provistons are measured al the best estimate of the
amount expected 10 become payable. The assessment is based on the ;udgement of tax pr.afessionals and i cenain cases based
on specialist independent tax advice Other provisions also mcludes pravision related 10 long tenn employee benelits These
previsions are not expected 1o be settled in (he next financial year

The Group may be imolved in disputes in the ordman course of business which may give nse 1o claims by chiems or
regulatory inestigations or preceedings The Group defends such claims where appropriate and also benefits from substantial
professional indemmily insurance Where costs are hikely to be meurred in defending and concluding stich claims. a proviston 1s
made based on management's assessment of the specific circumstances in each case and the likely costs to be incurred by the
Growp which 1s recorded vnder "Other provisions”. No separate disclosure 1y riade of the cost or nature of claims coversd by
wisurance as to do so could scrionshy prejudice the position of the Group
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20. Provisions and Employee benefit obligations (continued)

LLP
Emplovee benelit abligations Provisions
. i Other
Pensions Annvilties Property ™ Total
provisions
fm £m £m £m fm
(note 213 (note 22)
Balance at 1 May 2021 - 156 14 5 175
Transferred from Clifford
Chance London Lunied* 220 ) - ) 20
Charge dunng the year 2 - 1 26 29
Amounts paid { utilised ! released {15) {18) - t1) (34)
Net gan due to changes wn acluanal 18 i . ) (78)
assumpiions
Balance at 30 April 2022 129 138 15 30 312
Charge dunng the ycar 4 (43 - 1 ]
Amounts pad ¢ utithsed / released 24 {18} - 18 (60)
Net gain due to changes 1n aciuanal an ) i ) (n
assumplions
Balance at 30 Apnil 2023 G2 116 15 13 236
The above amounts have been disclosed m the Bakance sheet as foliows
Cunsolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m £m fm
Fmployec benefit obliganons - current 18 21 15 19
I'mploy ee benefit obligations - non-currenl 207 266 193 248
223 287 208 267
Prosisions - current - 1 I
Provisions - non-curcnt 39 34 28 44
39 55 T 45
264 342 236 3i2

* [n the previous year. the LLP. UCLL and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme n which certain employecs of CCLE
participated had agreed under a ‘Flexible Appornonment Arvangement’ u the transfet of the whole pension liability of CCLL to
the | | P as on 30 November 2021 The outstanding pension [rability on 30 November 2021 was £220m. The transfer was
accounted for as a capital contribution by the LLP in CCLL and resulted 1n an increase ur investments by an amount equal to
the pension habibhiy at the date of the ranster
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21, Defined benefil pension scheme

Chiford Chance Pension Trustees ! imsted 1s the trustee of a defined benefit scheme in which certain employees of Chifford
Chance Londen | imited participated ("the Scheme”} The Scheme was closed to future accrual with effect from 3¢ Apn1 2011

The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group

Payments 1nto the Scheme are assessed m accordance with the advice of an independent quahified actuary with the funding rate

ntended to enable the Scheme to be fully funded over time

A [ull tnennial actuarial valuation of the Scheme has been camicd out as at 30 Apnl 2022 but has not yet been concluded. and

updated as at 37 April 24123 by a qualfied independent actuary  Details of such updated valuation are as under

The key accounting assumptions used are set out below

Discount rate

Future pension increases - pensions accrued priwer to 30 Aprl 205
Fulure pension increases - pensions accrued after 3) April 20335
Price inflation

2023
4 8%
3 0%
20%
32%

2022
3 1%
3 2%
2 3%
319,

Mortality assumplians have been based on $3 SAPS Light tables with CM1 2021 improvements (2022 53 SAPS Light tables
CMI 2021 improvements ). projecied according 1o each member's year of bith The assumgptions for both yvears include an

allowance for increased tongevity, assuming a long-term rate of mprovement of | 09 per annum

The assumed life expectaticas on retirement at age 63 are

Retirmg today-
Males

Females

Retiomg 1 210 years.
Males

I emales

The amounl recepnised m the consolidated meonie statement was as {ollows

Inlerest charge 'net) under net finance ¢asts (nate 8)

The amownt recognised in the consahdated other comprehensive income was as foliows

Remeasuren:ent gain from changes in finangial assumptions
Remeasurement loss from changes i experience

Remeasurement (gain }loss from changes in demographic assumptions
Remeasurement loss on the scheme assets

Gain recognised i the consolidated statement of comprehiensive income
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2023 2022
881 883
896 898
891 893
90 8 910
2023 2022
Em m
4 3
2023 2022
£m fm
(233) {134)
13 6
(4) 12
207 11
(17} (125}
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21, Defined benefit pension scheme {continued)

The liability included in the consolidated balance sheet was as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
fawr value of plan assets

Present value of net obligation (note 20)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the

year were as follows:

At the beginning of the year

Transferred from Clifford Chance London Limited*
[nterest on obhigauons

Remcasurement gan from changes in financiat
assumptions

Remeasurement loss/gain} from changes in expenience
Remeasurernent (gam ) 1oss {rom changes in
demographic assumptions

Benefits patd

At he cnd of the year

Movements in the fair value of Scheme assets were as follows;

At the beginning of the year

Transferred from Chilford Chance | ondon | wnted®
Intcrest income on Scheine assets

Remeasurementt loss on the schenw assets
Comributions made

Benefils paid

Al the end of the year

The assets held by the Scheme were as follows

L.quitres and other growth asscts
Liabtlity driven mvestment
Bonds

Giher assets

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm Em Em
534 743 534 743
(442) (614} 442} (614)
92 129 92 129
Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm im £im
743 869 743 -
- - - 971
23 17 23 7
(233) (L15d) 233) (241)
13 6 13 (2)
{4) 12 (4) 12
(&) (7 (8) )
§34 T43 334 743
Consglidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m Em £ im
614 208 614 -
R - - 751
19 12 19 5
(207) ( (207 (153)
24 22 24 15
(8) M 18) (4
442 614 442 614
2023 % of 2022 % of
value total value total
fm value fm value
232 52% 358 58%
186 42% 211 34%
- 0% 29 5%
24 6% 16 3%
442 100% 614 100%

* In the previous ycar. the LI CCiL and the Trustee of the Pension Scheme, 1n which certan employees of CCLL
pamcpated had agreed under a 'FFlexible Apportionment Arrangement’ to the transfer of the whole pension hahility of CCLL to
the | L P as on 30 November 2021 The cuislanding pension hiabihty on My Norember 2021 was £220m The wansfer was
accounted for 2s 2 caputal contribuhion by the LLP m CCLL and sesulted in ah increase m mvestments by an amount cqual 1o the

pension hability at the date of the transfer

Based on the results of the most recenily completed tnenmial aciuanal valuauon as at 30 Aprl 2019, the employer has agreed
that it witl i to climmate the Scheme's deficit (as assessed on the ongoung funding basis) by 31 May 2328 The coninbutions
paid by 1he employer for the pertod from { May 2022 1o 30 April 2023 were £24m Funding evels are momored on an annual
basis and the pext triennial valuation as at 30 Apnl 2022 s currently underway  Lypected employer contnibunions to the Scheme
for the vear ending 30 Apnil 2024 arc around £17m “here are no member contributions expected for the sear to 3¢ Apnil 2024
The weighted average duration of the defined benedit obhigation 1s around 18 years
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21. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)

Sensitivities

The key assumptions used for the actaanal valuauor: are the discount rate. price mflation and mortahty  If different
assumptions were used this could have a materta effect on the results disclosed  The sensitivity of the results to these
assumptions is as follows:

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Dhseaunt rate less (1.25% per arnum £m Em £m f£m
Present value of defined benefit obhigation 539 184 559 784
Fair value of assets (442} {614} (442) (614)
Revised net pension liability if7 170 117 170
Revised total charge to the income statement 5 5 5 5
RPL inflation plus 0.25% per annum £m fm fm f£m
Presem value of defined benefit obligation 554 778 554 778
Fair value of assets (442) {614} (442 {614)
Revised net pension liabibity 112 164 112 164
Revised total charge to the income statement 5 5 3 5
Vorialiny asswmption with 1 25% per
annnm long ternt rale of iniprovenent £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit 538 750 538 730
Fair value of assels {442) [CIES (442) {614)
Revised net pension liability ' 96 136 96 136
Revised total charge (o the incone statement 4 4 4 4

The sensitivity information shuwn above 15 approximate and has been determiried tahing into account the duration of the
lighilitics and the overall profile of the plan memberslup

Risks

The Group is exposed 10 2 number of risks through the Scheme of which the most significant are detailed below

Isset volatiiy

The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporale bond yields. 1f assets underperform this
yield. this will create a deficit The Scheme holds a sigmficant proporiion of growth assets {including equities, diversified
growth funds and property ) which are expected 10 outpertermt corporate bonds m the long-tenn while resulting n
volatility and risk in the short-term. The atlecaton ta growth assets 15 momtared such that it 1s consistent with the
Scheme's long term objectives

Changes m bund yields

A decrease in corporate bond vields will mcrease the Schamd's labilibes although tus waill be partiatly offset by an
merease in the vahee of ihe Scheme s bond holdings
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21, Defined benefit pension scheme (continued}
Inflation risk
The majorily of the Scheme's benefit ubhgations are linked 10 flation and higher miflation will lead to higher labilities
(although_ m most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are 1 place 1o protect aganst extreme inflation) A
significamt proportion of the Scheme's assets are invested in a iablity dniven investment porifolio which is designed to match
the Liabthities of the Scheme and provide protcchion against increases in inflation

Life expecrancy

The majonity of the Schemc’s obligations arc 1o provide benefits for the hife of the member, so increases in the life expectancy
will resull n an increase in the Liabilties

In addition te the UK scheme, the Finm operaics some smaller defined benefit schemes in other countries. The 1otal pension
cost for the yesr and the aggrepate asscts and habilies of these schemes were not matenial

22. Anauity obligations to current and former pariners

An independent qualified actuary has assessed the cost of annuity vbligauens The economic assumptions used hy the actuan
M assessing the cost of anneity obhgations in both the Consohdated and 1 1 P fmancial statements are as Tollows

2023 022

% %

[hscound rate sl 30
Rate of price inflation 34 48

The cost of annuitics which are dependent upon ihe future profitabihits of the Finm has been estinated based upon current and
projected lesels of profitabiiity and having regard W a cap apphyable o such awawiny pasnents

Amounts recogrised in the consehdated meome statement were as olfows 2013 2022
£m £m
Movemenls in pros sion arising from
Current service cost 3 3
Other aciuartul gains (12} (6}
Amount credded 1o the consolidated income statement® (% (3)
[nterest costs associated with obligations shown under net finance costs (noie 8) 5 2
Total credint 10 the consolidated income statement {uote 243 (4} (1)

* Of thrs amount. a charge of £1m {2022 £2m) has been ncluded within members’ remunerauon charged as an expensc, and a
creditof £10m (2022: £5m) in reiabon to partners whe were not members and former pariners has been included in slafT and
related costs
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22, Anawity obligations to current and former partners (continued)

Mosements in the net Liabahiy recognised in the consolidated balance sheet were as follows

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m fm £m
Provision at the begimnming of the year 158 179 138 136
Credit 10 the income statement 14} hH ) .
Annuues paid 20 (20) {18y {18y
Provision at the end of the year (note 20 133 158 116 138

The basis of calculaiion of the annuiuies provision in the balance sheet of Clilford Chance LLP is the same as set out above in
relauen to the consolidated balance sheet but takes e account only those partners whose annuity entuiements are a direct
obhigation of Chifford Chance I L P Annuiy entitlements of other partners are a contingent obligation of Chifford Chance L1.P.

Sensitivities

The key assumption used for the actuanal valuation 13 the discount rate  The impact ol a 0 1%e decrease ta the discount rate
would be to increase the liability by approximately £im (2022 £lm)

23, Members' capital
Consolidated and LLP

2023 2022

im im

Total members' capsial at the beginming of the vear 142 157
Capital contributed during the ycar - -
Capital repaid during the year {28} (15}
Total members’ capial at the end ol the vear 114 142

Non-US members arc requared 1o give a nunimum of not less than six months notice of reirement. whilst US members are not
required to give notice Members' capial which 1s measured at cost 1s repayable withiy st months ol retirciment. Members'
capital 18 required to be classified as a habiuy. wath capatal due 10 LS and revirng partners c assified as a current liability . and
the remammg habdity classificd as a non-current habihty
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24, Statement of mavements in net assets/(liabilities) of members excluding members' interests classified as liabilities

A summany of movements i net assets / {liabilities) attnbutable to members excluding members' interests classified as
habiliues stnce the last balance sheet date is as fullows

Consclidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
fm £m fm Em
{restated) {restared)
Net assets ¢ {liabilities) attributable to members excluding
members interests classified as Viabilsties at the beginning of 541 E¥p 12 21
the year
Profit for the year 742 739 648 377
f‘_orclgn exchange dflerences arising on translaton of 4 49 13 7
{oreagn operations
Actuanal gamn on defined henefit pension scheme 17 125 17 78
Peferred tax on defined benefit pension scheme . (51) - -
Duerease n provisions attnhutable o members un (9N {14 9
Caputal repayments (net) (28 (13 (28) (5
Proht distnibutions and relsted tax (7300 (669) (4703 (315)
Nt assets ¢ (labdies) atnbutable to nrembers cwluding
members” interesis classilicd as habelities at the end ol the 559 541 278 112
year

25, Related party transactions

Within the Group hnancial stztements. balances between Clifford Chance 11 and ns subsidiary cntitics have been
chninated on cotrsoledation

Durmg the year. Clifford Chanece 11 P previded management and lepal sences 16 uts subsidiany entties sotading £177m
{2022 £150m) Management and legal semices were purchised ffom other Group members totaling £478m {2022: £408m).
Profit distributien paid by the [ 1P on behalf of subsihany entines totalimg net £10m (2022 net £62m). The LLP has
recenved dividend ncome of £158m (2022 £mD duning the vear. The balances outstanding between Clifford Chance LLP
and 115 subsidiary catntes at the end of the financial year are shown in notes 15 and 18

The key management personnel compnise the Executive Leadership Group (LLG) The total remuneration of the 16 ELG
members (2022 14 LI G members) in respect of the financial y car amounted 1o £38m (2022 £34m). The total remuneration
m respect of the financial year for the relative of an EL.G member, who 1s an employee, amounted te £1m (2022: £1ny),
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26. Financial assets and liabilities
The following information 1s provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

Categories of financial assers and labiflties

The following table categonises the carrying value of the financial assets and hiabihies at the balance sheet date In each case,
the far value s not matenally different 1o the carrying salve.

Consolidated LLP
Financial assets 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm £m fm
frestated,
Accrued income 376 369 162 163
Trade receivables 516 452 267 217
Amounts due from subsidiary entities - - 353 274
Finance lease recervables G4 122 86 108
Amounts due from members 87 8l - .
Cash at bank and in hand 232 378 96 138
1,305 1.402 964 900
Financial liabilities
Trade and other current pay ables excluding accruals and
deferred ircome 266 244 98 92
Amounts due to subsidiany entitics - - 406 405
I case habilities 636 555 266 304
Amounts due to members - - 33 36
Members' capytal 114 142 114 142
Annuities 133 158 116 138
Aceruals 216 229 G4 73
1.368 1128 1.099 1.193

Risks arising from financial assets and liabilities

The following summarises the principal risks associated with the groupy's financial assets and habilitws and how those nsks are
managed

Liguictuy and caputal risk

The business is predominantly financed by partners' capital and undistributed camings with a RCF available  'he capnal
structure is reviewcd regufarly 1o ensure that it is adequate 1o fund the current and projected needs of the busmess The
adequacy of borrowing facilitics is regularly reviewred in light of projections of future cash flows The Group has comfortably
complicd with the banking covenants set under the borrowing facilities

The Group continues to focus on working capital management. in particular implementing mprovements 1o manage WIP and
debtor davs. As at 30 April 2023 there are total undrawn commitied borrowing facilities of £150m in both the Group and the
LLP. The Group also has a substantial cash al bank batance of £232m (2022: £378m).

Crrrrency risk
The reporting curvency is Sterling but the Group's business is intemmaticnal. Within each oftice. revenues and costs are

predominantly in the same cumency . The consolidated balwice sheet exposures 1o currencies other than Sterling (principally 1S
Nollars and Euros) are regulady monitored and are considered W be naturally hedged

Credi risk

The treasury policy requires that surplus funds be deposited only with approved counterparties and within counlerparty hnuts
An assessment is made of the credit risk associated with clients by reviewing independent ratmgs and by montioring he level
of unpaid fees.
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26, Financial assets and Jiabilities (continued)

The Group has two types of financia! asset that are subject (w the expected credit loss model.
- Trade recervables
Accrued mcome

Whilc cash at bank and in hand and amount due from members are also subject (0 the imparment requirements of IFRS 9, the
dentified imparment loss was not material

The Group apphes the IFRS 9 simphfied approach 1o measure expecied credii losses which uses a Wfeume expecied Joss
allowance for all trade receivables and accrued income. and therefore does noi track changes in credn risk With respect 10
amounis due from group undentakings, 2 general approach under FFRS 9 is applied under which the ioss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to the lifetime expecred credut losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
sigmificantly since ingtial recognition Howewer. 1f, at the reporting date, the ¢redil nisk on the amounts dwe from group
undertakings have not increased significantly since initial recognition. an entity shall measure the loss allowance at an amount
equal to I2-month expected credit losscs

To measure the expected credn losses, trade receivables and accrued income have been grouped based on shared credit nsk
charactenstics and the days past due Assessmg the credit nsk on a client by client basis would mvolve significant cost and
effon As such. eredit risk 15 considercd on an office by office basis as cach office can be considered to reflect a particular
level of credn nisk

Trade recervables and accrued weame are written ofl when there 15 no probability of recovery  Indicators would mclude
faihure to make any contractual payments, entening higuidation procedures or clear signs of financial difficulties

The accrued income amounis relate to unbilled work m progress | nder the ECL provision matrix methodology , the “less than
30 days” loss rano (Group § 5% (2027 087 1 1F 0 19012022 1 6%4)) calculated in respect of current irade receivables. is
applied to the whole of the WIP balance after speaific provisions on the basis that all of these amounis are unbilled and
therefore fulfy current

The Group considers the ageing profite of bilhings and recenables over a three-year period, bemg that peniod over which more
than 99%¢ of mvoices are collected 1he expected loss rales are based on the weighted average rates of payment profiles over
the bills 1ssued durniig the financial y cars ended 30 Apnl 2019 and 2020, adyusted by country speeidic eredu default swap rates
to reflect current and forward-looking information on macrocconannc factors affecting the ability of the customers tu settle the
receivables
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26. Financial assets and liahilities (continued)

The loss allowance as at 30 Apnil 2023 and 33 April 2122 fisr debturs due 1s set cul below The loss rate for 30 days has been
wholly applied to the accrued income balance.

Consolidated

Ageing (ross trade receivables due Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£im fm %o % £fm £m
30 days 300 265 a7 08 (2) {2)
6u days 79 71 13 14 in n
90 days 55 39 36 31 (2} (2)
18€ days 32 54 77 74 ()] )
| year 37 31 243 194 (9} (6
3 vears 37 34 03 882 (26) (30)
Qver 3 years 17 1t 1009 824 (17} (14}
577 511 61y (59)

Accrued income Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£fm £m Yo % £m £m
Current TR 372 0s 08 2) (3)

LLP

Ageing Gross trade receivables due Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m Yo % £m £m
3 dms 164 135 0é ) (N (1)
60 day s 44 34 - - - -
90 davs 24 17 - 39 - )
130 days 19 29 $3 50 n n
| ycar 16 11 188 167 (kY (2}
3 years 14 16 643 938 9 {13
Over 3 years 8 7 100 v 371 (8) 14}
289 241 (22) (24)

Accrued income Loss rates Loss allowance
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
im £m %o Yo £m £m
Current 162 164 01 06 {0} h
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26. Financial assets and Yiabilities {continued)
Accrued income

Yhe table below analy ses accrued income at the balance sheet date by geographic region

Consofidated LLF
2023 2022 2023 2022
Em im £m Em

Americas 58 56 - .
Asia Pacific 14 76 2] 25
Contnental Europe 121 s 19 18
Middle Fast 8 10 8 10
Umited Kingdom 115 112 114 110
Tota! 376 369 162 163
Trade receivables
Ihe table below analy ses trade recevables at the balanve sheei date by geographic region

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022

£m fm £m £m

Americas 36 50 - -
Asia Pacific 68 73 4 4
Continental burope 158 140 3 24
Middle Last 26 18 23 18
United Kingdom 208 171 207 171
Total 516 452 267 217
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26, Financial assets and labilities {continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtfuf debts were as follows.

Consolidated LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m fm £m
Balance at the beginning of the year (59) (35) (24) (25)
Increase 1n provision (25) (28} {6} &)l
Reversal of provision 10 10 5 &
Amounts utilised during the yeac 14 17 4 5
Foreign exchange movements (1) (3 ) (1)
Balance at the end of the year 6l) (59} (22) {24)

Trade receivables not yet paid are reviewed regularly and provisions are estabhshed on a specific basis if collechion of the
amount due is 10 doubt. Amounts are written off against the prosision once 1t becomes clear that no further recoveny s likely

10 occur, at which point enforcement activity will cease

Net impairmient losses on financial assets recognised in consolidaled income statement wwere as tollows

Consolidated
2023 2022
£m £m
Net impairment lesses - mavement in [oss allowance for trade receivables (15} (18)
Net impairment losses - movement 1n loss allowance for accrued income 1 (2)
{14) {20)

Currency prafile of financial assets and fiabilities

The currency profile of the Group's financial asses and habilities at the balance sheet date was as follows

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
frestated)
Financial assets fm £m £m fm
GBP 362 578 466 438
usD 145 215 117 28
EUR a12 309 121 138
Other 286 300 266 276
1.305 1.402 564 900

Financial liabilities
GBP 732 800 656 886
uUsD 242 134 30 15
EUR 240 261 H 95
Ohher 151 133 292 197
1,365 1,328 1.099 1,193
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26. Financial assets and fiabilities (continued)
Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The foliow ing tables show the maunity profile of the Group's financial rabilities at the balance sheet date

Consolidated
Meore than
2023 01 year 1-5 years S years Others Total
fm £m £m fm fm
Trade and vther current
pay ables excluding accruals
and deferred income 266 - - 266
Members' caprial # [ - - 106 14
Annuities 18 57 58 - 133
Acceruals 216 . - - 216
508 57 58 106 H
L.LP
More than
2023 0-1 year I-5 years S years Others Tetnl
im £fm Em £m £m
Trade and other current
pay ables excluding accruals
and deferred income 08 - - - 98
Amounts dug to subsidiany 106 _ R . 406
enlites
Members capital * 8 - - 106 114
Amounts due to members 35 - . . EE]
Annuities 13 49 32 - 116
Accruals 64 - - - 54
626 49 52 106 833 #

*As per the paninership agreement members' capilal 1y repayable within siv months ot a member retinng from the
parncrship, and accerdingly. the maturity of this amount is dependent upen when a partner retires, amount under “0-1
year” represents capual repasable of such retired partners The remaunng portion of members' capital classificd as
Others 1s dependent on the dates of member retirements which s unknown beyond 12 months

& Ihe maturity profile of leasc habilities of 30 April 2023 1s included m Notc 27 Group £636m (undiscounted £778m).
LI P £266m (undiscounted £289ny)
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26. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Maturity profile of finauciaf liabilities
The following tables show the maturity profile of the Group's financial Liabifities at the balance sheet date

Consolidated

More than
1022 0-f year 1-5 years 5 years Others Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other current
pavables excluding accruals
and deferred income 244 . R . 244
Members' capital * 9 - - 133 142
Annuities 21 59 78 - 158
Accruals 229 - - - 229
303 39 78 133 773 #
LLP
More than
2012 0-1 year 1-5 years S years Others Total
fm fm fm fm fm

Trade and other current

payables excluding accruals
and deferred income 92 - - 92
Amounts due to subs:deary

enlilies (restated) 426 : i ) 406
Members' capual * g - - 133 142
Amounts due o nwetabers 3t - - - 36
Annuitics 19 53 66 - 138
Accruals 75 - - - 75
637 53 66 133 889 #

*As per the pannershap agreement, members' capital is repavable within six mouths of a member relinng from the
parincrship. and accordmygly . the maturity of this ameunt is dependent upen when a pariner retires, amount under “0-1
year” represents capual repayable of such retired parners. The remaining poriion of members' caputal classified as
Othiers 18 dependent on the dates of member retirements which is unknown beyand 12 months

# The maturty profile of lease habifiues of 30 April 2022 is included in Nete 27 Group £3355m (undiscounted £60 [m).
LLP £304m (undiscounted £3.13m)
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26. Financial assets and linbilities (continued)

Sensitivity 1o marke! risks

Foreign currency nish anises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in
which they are measured, including foreign currency denominated intercompany receivables and payables which, although
they climmate in the Group's financial statements, the effect on the result of their revaluation under IAS 21, is not fully
ehininated

Lhe most significant foreign currencies o the Group are US Dollars and the Euro. The sensitivity of the Gruup's incume
statement 10 changes in these exchange rates anses from US Dollar and Euro denominated financial instruments. The Group

does not engage m cash flow hedgmg activities.

The exchange rates used i the preparation of these financral statements were as follows:

2023 2022
Average Closing Average Closing
rate rate rale rate
Limted States Dollar £ 121 126 1.33 1.26
buros £ 116 1.14 118 119

Ihe tollowing tabte details the Group's sensutivaty o i 10%a merease or decrease in the strength of Sterhing 10 the US Dollar
and to the 1 uro 10%0 15 the sensitin ity rate used when reporting foreipn currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represenis management’s assessment ol the reasanably possible change in foreign exchange rales

A nggative number below indicates a decrease i profit and other equny where Sterhing strengthens 10% against the relevant
currency  For a 10% weakeming of Sterling against the retevant curreney . there would be a comparable mpact on the profit

and other equity . and the balances below would be positive

Conselidated

Impact on other

t-t
Impact on post-tax profi components of equity

2023 2022 2023 2022

resuled) frestatecd)

£m fm m £m

Sterling 10%6 stronger agamst US Dollar 9 (& - -

Sterhng 16% stronger aganst Luro N 4 - -
LLF

[mpact on other

Impact on post-tax profit .
P P P companents of equity

2023 2012 2023 2022

£m fm £m fm

tresiated) freviateds

Sterhing 10%e stronger against US Dollar (6) {n - -
Sterhng 0% stronger against Cora (23 () - .

[he Group's net mterest cost on extemal borrovangs 1s £l and accordingly the seusiwaty of the group's profits and financia
assets and habulities (o changes m mteresd rales s msignificant
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27. Leases
{2} As a lessee:

This note provides information for leases where the Group 1s alessee For leases where the Group s a lessor see note 27 (b).

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 2023 2022
Right-ol-use assets £m £m £m fm
Property 450 326 122 123
Other 3 3 - -

453 329 122 125

The following are the changes in the carry ing alue of night-of-use assets for the year.

Consolidated LLP

Property Other Total Property
Cost: £m £m im fm
Balance as al | May 2021 412 s 417 141
Additions 71 1 18 28
Terminations (10 (21 (12) (6)
Translation difference . 8 - 8 2
Balance as at 30 April 2022 487 4 491 163
Additions 183 1 184 19
Terminalions (1 N un (6)
Translation difference 7 - 7 1
Balance as at 30 April 2023 667 4 671 179
Accumulated Depreciation:
Nalance as at 1 May 2021 (104 {2} (106) (210
Depreciation 57 4))] (58) (20)
Terminations i 2 7 2
Translation difference {5) - (3) (1}
Balance as at 10 Apnil 2022 (161) {n (162) (40
Deprecianon, (63) (B (64) (21)
Terminations 8 1 9 4
Translation difference () - (1) -
Balance as at 30 Apnl 2023 (217 (1 (218) (37}
Carrying amonnt:
As a1 30 Apnl 2022 326 3 329 12§
As at 3¢ Apri) 2023 450 3 433 122

The Group leases many assets which are primarily builldings for 1ts office space worldwide

Consolidated LLP

2023 2022 1023 2022
Lcase liahilitics £m £m £m fm
L urrent 91 94 46 43
~on-current 343 401 220 259

636 553 266 = 304 =

*this Iease liability palance mcludes £319m (2022 £265m) payable 1o an mlermediate lessor {related party )
As at 39 April 2023 (hree lease contracts relaang te London Ehosseldor! and Brussels oflices were commitied and not

commenced amousting 10 £336m As a1 30 April 2022 an 8 year lease contract which related to the Sydney office was
vommitted but not conunenced amountng to £26m.
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27. Leases (cantinued)
(a) As a lessee (continued):
(i) Amounts recognised in the bajance sheet {continued)

The fellowing is the movement in feasc liabilities duning the year.

Consolidated LLY
Property Other Tatal Total
fm fm £m £m
Balance as at | May 2921 558 4 562 320
Additions 9 1 41] 29
Terminations 5) - (5 3
Fmance cost accrued dunag the year 12 - 12 6
Payment of (ease habilities &9 (2) (10} (49}
Teanslation difference 1 - 7 |
Balance as a1 30 Apnil 2022 552 3 335 304
Additons 179 1 180 15
Termunations ) - 2) (2
I ance cost accrued during the year 4 - 14 7
Payment of lease habilines (116) th (n7) (39
Translahon difterence 6 - 6 1
Balance as at 30 April 2023 633 3 636 266
Total undiscounted lease liabilitics as a1 30 April Consolidated LL§
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m fm Im £m
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year Lil 106 51 51
One to two years [§12) %7 51 3l
Two 1o three years 97 a8 51 St
Three to four ycars 89 8 51 50
Four o five years 84 69 52 50
More than five vears 293 153 33 70
778 601 289 33
(ii} \mounts recognised in the income statement
The income siatenent shows the follow mg amounts relating to leases
Consalidated
2023 2022
£m im
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Property 63 57
Other 1 1
64 58
loterest on lease liabihties {imcluded m finance cost) 14 12
Income [rom sub-leasing right-ni-use assets - operating beases (3) 3
Income from sub-leasing nght-of-use assets - inance leascs 2) 3
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Net cash outllow for leases @En (75)
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27. Leascs (continued)

(8) As a lessee (continued):

(iii) Extension and termination options

There are no matenial termination options included m the property leases across the Group The Group has included some
matenial extension ophans for the Singapore & Austrahian office leases as management 1s reasonably certain the extension
ophions. held by the Group will be exercised, Leases due to expire within 12 menths of year end were examined to see 1f

there were any exerusable by lessec that may potentially be extended In cunsidenng all the facts and circumstances the
Group determuned that none of these feases expiring 112 12 months should imclude an extended lease term

(iv) Liguidity

The Group does not face @ significant liquidity nisk with rezard 1o s lease habilities as the current assels are sufficient to
meet the obligations related to lease habilities as and when they fall due for more details on the hiquidiy nisk see note 26

(b) As a lessor:

Lease income from leas# contracts in which the Group acts as a lessor is as below

Consolidated
2023 2022
fm £m
Finance Income
I inanee iceme on the nel unestment in the lease 2 3
Operating lease
| easc income 3 1
I'he folloving 1s the mosement i finance lease recers ables for the vear
Consolidated LLP
fm Em
Balance as at | May 2021 143 124
Interest income acerued during the year 3 2
| case recepts (26) (18)
Foreign cxchange resen ¢ 2 -
Balance as of 36 April 2022 122 108
Interest mcome accrued during the year 2 2
| case receipts (26) (20
lermunations 4 (4)
Balance as of 30 Apnl Fud3 94 86
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27. Leases (continued)

(b) As a lessor (continued):

Consolidated LLP

2023 2023

Lease receivables £m £m
Current 24 17
Non-cumrent 70 &9
94 86

Consolidated LLP

2022 2022

Lease receivables fm £m

Current 24 17
Mon-current 98 91

122 108

Operating leases

The followmng table scts cut the maturily analysis of the lease payments for the sub leases classified as operating leases.
showing the undiscounted lease pay ments to be receved alter the reporting date

Consolidated LLP

2023 2023

£m £m

| ¢35 than | year 2 2
One 1o two vears - .
Twy ta three years .
Three 1o four years - -
Four to five years - .
More than 3 years - .
Total undiscounted lease pasment Z ]

Consolidated LLP

2022 2622

fm fm

Less than | year 3 2
One 1o two years 2 2
1wo 1 three years . .

Threc to four years .

Four to five years - _
More than 3 years - .
L3 E)

Total undiscounted lease payment
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27. Leases {continued)
{b) As a lessor {continued):
Finance leases

The following table sets out the maturity analvsis of the lease payments for the sub leases classitied as finance leases.
showing the undiscounted kease payments to be received after the reporting date

Caonsolidated LLP

2023 2023

im £fm

Less than 1 vear 25 18
One to two years 18 18
Two to three years 18 18
Three to four years 8 18
Four 10 five years 1% 18

Mure than 5 years -

Total undiscounted lease pay ments receivable 98 20
L nearned finance income (4) )
Total lease receivables 94 836

Consolidated LIP

2022 20122

fm fm

Less than { vear 26 19
{Ine to 1wo years 23 18
Two to three years 19 19
Three to four yuars 19 19
Four to five vears 19 19
Morc than 5 ycars 21 20
Total undiscounted lease payments reccivable ’ 129 114
Unecamed {inance mcome W] (5}
Total Icasc reccivables ) 122 198
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28. Restatement of Consolidated and Limited Liability Partnership Financial Statements

The CCLLP Partnership Agreement sets out the basis of deteomining the profits available for allocanng profits to Partners.
Distributions of these profits to members are on a discretionary basis and are subject to approval by the Executive Leadership
Group each year Prior to the year ended 30 Apnl 2022, any profits carned at a subsidiary which were then distributed 10
members were recorded by CCLLP i an mtra-group recervable account, with a corresponding entry within reserves of the
CCL LP standalone accounts (the Limtted Liability Partnership Financial Statements)

In preparing the Annual Repon and Accounts for the year ended 30 April 2022, management reviewed the appropriaieness of
s accounhing treatment and concluded that the audit trail sciting out the appropriate accounting entnes and counterparties o
the ntra- group balances at that tme was not complete Addwionally at this ime CCLLP did not have a formalised contractual
relationship with ats subsidiary entities for such wransactions Therefore. a pnor year adjustment was recorded to derecognise
the 1ntra-group balance with a corresponding correcting adjustment m the reserves of CCLLP. This was the correction of an
ermror

During the vear ended 30 Apn! 2023, management have undertaken a further exercise o

1) Caleulate the individual intra-group balances between CCLLP and each subsidiary entuy as at 30 April 2021, 30 April
2022 and 30 Apnl 2023 which anse from profit distributions paid by CCLLP on behalf of a subsidiany entity, or vice-versa,

2) Put m place documeniation in the torm of agreements hetween CCHLP and relevant subsidiany entities to formalise the
existing, pracuce of allocating and distnbuting LLP profits

As a result the Annual Repon and Accuunts for the year ended 30 Apnil 2023 includes a prior peniod restatement to the
standalone financial statements af CUH P, 10 recopmise the resulung comrect intra-group balances with a correspondmg entry
i reserves lor the fiistocie profit atlocaiwons in the standalone batance sheet of CC LP which arises froni a correction of 4
pror penod eror This restatemicnt also recognises foretgn exchange translation differences on the revised inira-group
balances and additionally includes an adjstment 10 remove foreign exchange translation differences in the foreign exchange
reserve related 10 balances derceognesed 1 the prior ycar that remamed i the reserve i crror Ths restalement s sel pul in
restatement | below Restatement | also inclades a small adjustment to distributions i the vear to 30 Aprik 2022 (£3m).

During the process of comrecting the ntra-group balances as noted above, it was noted that foreign exchange gams and losses
ansing on other histonic itra-group balances had been mcomecily classihicd m the foren exchange resenve rather than in
profit and 10ss seserve  Tlus restatement which is the correction of an error 15 set oul i restatenment 2 below  There was also a
correction of an orror 1o 1he conselidated finanaal statements for the same reason. which has been noled separately 10 a lable
below (sel out as restalement 2a)
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28. Restatemcnt of Consolidated and Limited Liability Partnership Financial Statements (rontinued)

The restatement owthined above i relation 1o the consolidated financial statements 1s set out as follows

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at | May 2021

Audited Restatement 2a Restated
£m £m im
Reserves* 141 - 14:
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement 2a Restated
£m £m £m
Reserves* 334 - 334
Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited  Restatement 2a Restated
£m £m fm
Opcrating cosis
QOther operating cosls (233) (i5) {268)
Consolidated Statement of Compreheasive Income for the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited  Restatement 2a Restated
fm fm £m
Items thal may be reclassified subsequently to the
Consolidated Income statement:
Net forcign exchange differences recogmised within resenves 34 15 49
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 April 2022
Audited Restatcment 2a Restated
£n fm £m
Cash flows from operating activitivy 748 (13) 733
Cash flows from linancing acinilies {763) 15 (748:

*The resulung restatement to 'Reserves’ as at 1 May 2071 is an mncrease of £8m wm Forepr Fachange Resenves' and
corresponding reduction of £8m in "Oiher Reserves’. Similarly. as at 30 Apnil 2022 there 1s an increase of £23m in ‘Foreign

Exchange Resenes’ and a corresponding reduction of £23m i 'Other Reserves'
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28. Restatement of Consolidated and Limited Liability Partnership Financial Statements (centinued)

The restatements 1 and 2 outhined above 1 relation to ihe siandalone financiat statements are set out as follows

Limited Liability Partnership Balance Sheet as at 1 May 2021

Audited Restatement 1 Restatement 2 Restated
£m £m £m m
ASSETS
L rade and other recervables 458 20 - 478
LIABILITIES
Trade and ather payabics 690 (98) - 592
REPRESENTED BY:
Other teserves 1387) 101 [ 2T
' oreign exchange reserves 26 17 114} 25
Total Reserves (361) s - (243)
Limited Liahility Partnership Balance Sheet as at 30 April 2022
Audited Restatement !  Restatement 2 Restated
£m fm £m £m
ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 489 40 - 529
LIABILITIES
1rade and other pay abhs EaL] 1146) 392
REPRESENTED BY:
Other resenves (as at | May 2021) (387 101 14 {272)
Foreign exchange reserves (as at | May 2021) 26 17 1) 2y
Prafit for the ycar ended 30 April 2022 332 53 18) 377
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 April 2022 73 12 R 95
Prufit distributions and related 1ax for the
vear ended 30 Apnil 2022 (318) 3 315
Total Reserves (272) 186 - (86)
Limited Liability Partnership Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 A pril 2022
Audited  Restatement 1 Restaterment 2 Restated
fm £fm £m £m
Cash flows from opcrating aciivines 343 (15 (8) 322
Cash flows from financing activities {354} 15 i (331

The corrections to profil. other comprehensive income and profit disinbutions and related tax for the year ended 30 April 2022
as noted in the earlicr table afso resultl in a correction between operating and financing acuvities in the cash Now statement In
pnier years the income siatement and cther comprehensine income movements was not correctly mapped aganst the
corresponding intercompany recevable/parable balance sheet movements which resulted in aperatng and financmg cash flow

movements being reported m ervor  The restatement corrects this
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